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Corporate Profile
NAEN

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16th February, 2000, and then successfully
shifted to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26th January,
2004. The Group has a strong shareholder background and well
operational and professional management team.

The Group owns a retail chain in Zhuhai, the PRC for selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and
services providers in the region.

Subsidiary:
Mobile Phone Retail Chain
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Corporate Milestones
rEERE

The former trading arm of the Group — Express Fortune Limited (‘EFL”) was founded by
Mr. Lau Siu Ying and his brothers in Hong Kong.
ANEREREABREBRIUREARAA ([RE]) —AEBEA S EHESE -

1992-94

EFL became one of Nokia’s earliest authorised distributors in the PRC.
REKASHETHRERBEERERZ —-

Commenced Fortune Telecom Group’s franchise retail business in the PRC.
RABREREEGEECELERTEER-

Listed on the GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 8040).
REBB R ATAIZENR B (AR5 H5E - 8040) -

A US$12 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
X Th & BE— 812,000,000 7T 2 R B & 5K -

Completed the acquisition of 51% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific (Holding) Limited
(“Synergy Pacific”).
TRMERESEL (ER)ARAA ([REEH]) Z51%RE -

Fortune Shanghai was acknowledged by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Management
Committee as one of the best enterprises for commodity sales.

RELBELBISRAVREEZEEERNRHERBEELEX 2 —

A HK$160 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
B3 & HE—18160,000,000/% 7T 2 iR B B K -

The Group has achieved a record annual sale of 2.1 million sets of mobile phones and a record net
profit over HK$60 million.
N5 B & T 852,100,000 5 1% 89 E &% 138 860,000,000/ T 4% F 89 42 8%

For a consecutive year, Fortune Shanghai was again acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Management Committee as one of the best enterprises for

commodity sales.
BEE_F REIEBEEIBIISHBARVIEEEZESERDMIHEREELE L —




Corporate Milestones
TEERE

Listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 110).
REEBRFAER L (REBRE110) -

A US$16 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
X1 % #F— 816,000,000 7T 2 SR E B 5K -

Fortune Shanghai increased its share capital from US$6 million to US$25 million.
RIE 8§ H Mk 7K 6,000,000 7T 15 /il £25,000,000% 7T °

Successfully completed the acquisition of 100% shareholdings of Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited, and the disposal of 46% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.
3N 5E R U8 B2 Synergy Technologies (Asia) Limited 2 100% %4 & H & KR8 5 2 46 %L HE

Newly obtained the nationwide distributorship of Samsung mobile phones.
MRS =ERYER 2 E2E D HE-

Successfully obtained the Fulfillment Distributorship for all Nokia Stores in the PRC.
BRIWBGEPBEMAERETEEECREAEENHE-

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment Company Limited
(BFRBmEREAAREAR 2 A) and completed the acquisition in October 2007.
FIANBRETERERMRBER AR Z51%RE WK BT F 1+ H EaUHE -

Formed a joint venture with TeleChoice International Limited for the Nokia fulfillment
business.
EiTeleChoice International Limitedf\ iz —fH& & AR H FmE DR KREEFERK -

Name changed to China Fortune Holdings Limited.
FEARTEREZERERAA -

Completed the acquisition of 50.8% interest in Sifa Mining which has the right to conduct
mining activities in a Celestite (Strontium), Zinc and Lead mining site situated in the Hubei
Province, the PRC.

BRI AR T BN E —EXEA (88) « ¥ REATEISHE 1T R E ) A £ 2 1 3£ $£50.8%
P HE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Dear shareholders,

REVIEW

2014 continued to be a year full of difficulties and challenges.
Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen
and the Group’s performance in this area had been affected.
Customer’s focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience and,
in this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores
have advantages.

In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance
the shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the related
mobile phone industry for decades, and the potential for mobile
phone related business development is surely enormous and
sustainable, mobile phone operating system and mobile internet
are the major key business areas the Group is interested in.

Lau Siu Ying

2N e

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

ETEREFEATE

BRBER
=l &

R -MENARNBES  RAE - BABH
BEEMBSAMER ERHERTETHNG
FADAFEEHR BMAKRBE R I BE MR E
XEE -BHEPMNENSABIERENIEE
BEEBDER I REFREREHER
wESE-

AEBREXRBEAZTIBER —EREY
BRE-—FRABRREEZAK ARAKE
EXNERBEEHERTERTH NLBHE
FHBXBRARANKERREN BHE
FERIEAG LB ERPE RANEERERR
ZEBGER



In March 2013, we have acquired 6.25% (at that time) equity
interest in Jolla Limited which is a Finland company specialized
in mobile phone operating system development. Its coming
innovative and brand new mobile phone operating system can
surely bring new impact to the market.

For our mining business, the downturn in demand for minerals
and cyclic fluctuations in the industry have dramatically and
adversely affected our construction plan while we are in the mid-
way in developing a new mining site exploitation system. The
road ahead for our mining business won’t be straight and easy,
but full of obstacles and uncertainties. We will certainly stay the
course and solve all the problems encountered.

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in the PRC. The PRC is one
of the strongest countries in terms of economic performance,
and with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Though with keen competition, development potential is still
enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our existing
relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for further
cooperation opportunities.

With a view to diversify the business of the Group, the Group is
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to sincerely thank our employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment to
the Group, and | would like to express my appreciation to
our financial institutions, shareholders and investors for their
continuing supports and trust towards the Group.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2015

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE
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EEER WD

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review

Our turnover in mobile phone business continued to drop in the
year, leading to a loss of HK$9.5 million incurred in this business
segment, as compared to a segment loss of HK$4.9 million in
last year. For our mining business which the exploitation on the
first phase was completed in 2010 and development of a new
mining site exploitation system in the next phase commenced
since then, exploitation of minerals is now halted. According to
the forecast adopted in the year for the valuation of the mining
business, which details are set out in note 17 on pages 111 to
1183 of this report, the value of the mining business approximates
to its carrying value as at 31st December, 2014.

The Group recorded a substantial drop in the consolidated
revenue from HK$198.3 million in last year to HK$57.6 million
in this year. The gross profit amounted to HK$8.6 million, a
decrease when compared to the last year of HK$15.6 million.
The gross margin percentage during the year was 14.9% which
was higher than the last year of 7.9% due to the better gross
margin achieved in the mobile phone retail and wholesale
business in this year. The other gains and losses in this year
included an impairment loss recognised in respect of plant and
equipment amounted to HK$1.0 million.

The selling and distribution costs amounted to HK$10.4 million
which remains at similar level as last year of HK$10.8 million.
The administrative expenses amounted to HK$30.0 million, an
increase when compared to the last year of HK$25.7 million
mainly due to increase in staff cost in the year.

10

Bl B8 & Al %
B %E B
AEBEBHEFEBCEXBRRFRAEET

Bk - R 75 o B & A E5 189,500,000 TT
i 2= F B 8% 18 5 30 &5 184,900,000 7T » fL A &=
EoREXBME  F—BBEAOREIEER=

T-TFEEK HEBHBR T —RBER BRNE
IR R L - T B AT E R YK o \RIBF A sh
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R-ZE—NE+_A=+—BEEEMRE
KEB 7446 WA EFE 2198,300,0007%

JLKWE T Bk = K F E 257,600,000 7T FE 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As far as the mobile phone retail chain and wholesale business
in Zhuhai was concerned, the revenue achieved during the
year amounted to HK$42.3 million, decreased by 57.7% as
compared with last year of HK$100.1 million. Owing to the
fierce competitive business environment this retail chain facing,
the Group continued to share a loss from it during the year. As
the performance of the two associates was unpromising so far
since these associates were invested by the Group, the Group
shared net losses of HK$1.4 million from the results of these
two associates during the year as compared to the net loss of
HK$0.6 million from one associate in last year.

The finance costs kept at same level at HK$1.3 million this year
when compared to last year.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31st December, 2014 amounted to HK$195.9
million or HK$0.24 per share when compared to HK$223.5
million or HK$0.27 per share as at 31st December, 2013. The
basic loss per share was 2.96 Hong Kong cents as compared to
the basic loss per share of 7.28 Hong Kong cents in last year.

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group’s aggregate other
borrowings amounted to HK$15.5 million when compared
to HK$15.9 million as at 31st December, 2013, which was
maintained at a similar level.

The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total
long term liabilities to the shareholder’s equity, was 0.34 and
0.31 as at 31st December, 2014 and 2013 respectively.

EEE WD

ERK GRS EETEEHAMBEL T -
P E RSB U2 542,300,000 7T B EFE
2100,100,00078 7T T Bk57.7% o 88 i It T & i

HEPBREEYRRE A EEFANEE
AL EE MRBEARHBHAEERE -
HRZERERAZKRRAESTIARMEE K
EEFADEZMREEANRIEEZFERAR
1,400,000 70 - T EFERI A E—KEE A
B ¥ 48 2 7F F518600,00078 7T ©

AFEZBEARARLFERR #F4E
1,300,000/ 7T °

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—RH A2aHEEA
JE(E AR EE & EFE 5195,900,0007 T3k &%
0247w MR —_E—=%5+=-A=+—HE|
#%223,500,000/% 7T 3k T 1%0.278 7T « IR E A
B8 R2.9681(l m LFER ATRERNEIE
7.287 1l -
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The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$71.3
million as at 31st December, 2014 without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital,
borrowings. During the year, there was no material change in the

cash flow generated from its operation and other

funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred all in
Renminbi in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group.

The inventories of the Group as at 31st December, 2014
amounted to HK$6.5 million, when compared to HK$7.2 million
as at 31st December, 2013, mainly since less inventories
was kept as driven by a reduced turnover volume in the year.
The inventory turnover period was 46 days in this year when
compared to 27 days of last year. The Group will continue to
apply strict policy in inventory control in the future.

The amount of trade and other receivables as at 31st December,
2014 was HK$14.9 million, when compared to HK$20.8 million
as at 31st December, 2013. In order to minimise the credit risk
for the trade receivables, the Group has implemented strict
control on the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group had in total 140
employees as compared to 158 employees as at 31st
December, 2013. Employees were remunerated according to
the nature of their job duties and market trend. The Group
provided staff welfare and fund contribution to its employees in
accordance with the prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. There was no material change in the remuneration policy,
bonus scheme and share option scheme during the year. The
Group has a share option scheme under which the Company
may grant share options to the participants, including directors
and employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 1.2 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end 2014. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,

“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in 2009 and the issuance of 3G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services.
Thus, large mobile telecommunications chain stores are
expected to become the main sales channel for the mobile
carriers for their bundled mobile phones.

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of wholesale and retail
of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China. Although
there was growth in the mobile phone market, the competition in
the mobile phone retail market was very keen and the Group’s
performance in this area had been affected.

EEE WD
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Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
in purchasing a mobile phone. In the
3G & 4G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications
and the Internet also led to rapid development of value-added
business which requires the retail channels to advance from

installing software, etc,

a pure sales platform to an integrated service platform. In this
regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores have
advantages.

Investment in mobile phone operating system

On 29th December, 2012, the Group subscribed a convertible
bond issued by Jolla Limited, which is a newly established
company in Finland and engaged in mobile phone operating
system development. After full conversion of the convertible
bond into shares of Jolla Limited and together with further
subscriptions, the Group acquired approximately 6.25% (at
that moment) equity interest in Jolla Limited with an aggregate
consideration of HK$10.2 million in March 2013. Although Jolla
Limited is a newly established company in Finland, its team
consists of well-experienced programmers and developers
of mobile phone operating system. Jolla Limited’s coming
innovative and brand new mobile phone operating system is
expected to bring new impact and opportunity to the market.

Mining

We commenced developing a new mining site exploitation
system in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the
expiration of a five-year mining operating permit on 25th
September, 2012, Sifa Mining obtained a two-year renewed one,
in which Sifa Mining is restricted to exploration activities over the
mining site only. After further submissions of relevant technical
documentations to the Ministry of Land and Resources of the
PRC (“MLR”") for fulfilling exploitation requirements, a restriction-
free mining operating permit can be renewed upon the expiry
of this two-year permit. This two-year mining operating permit
expired on 25th September, 2014. Sifa Mining is not allowed
to restart any mining activities until a renewed mining operating
permit is obtained.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group prepared documentation as required
and submitted the application to MLR for a renewal of mining
operating permit without the prohibition of exploitation activities.
At the date of this report, the application is still under the final
assessment by MLR. In the opinion of the directors, it is highly
probable that the renewal application will be approved by MLR in
the first half year of 2015.

If the renewal application was unsuccessful or the prohibition
on exploitation activities was not released, the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the mining business shall
be reassessed and the carrying amount of mining right may be
impaired.

The exploitation on the first phase was completed in 2010. Sifa
Mining commenced developing a new mining site exploitation
system in the next phase since then. However, the development
had been inevitably and adversely affected by the downturn
of the global mineral resources demand since second half
year of 2012. Although it was expected that the downturn
was temporary and only being a normal cycle adjustment in
the industry, the management proceeded in a prudent way to
restructure the overall construction schedule of this new mining
system, by readjusting construction speed and time schedule for
matching the industry cycle accordingly.

Prospect and Outlook

The continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market,
there were more than 1.2 billion handset subscribers in the PRC
with an increase of around 57 million subscribers in 2014. There
were over 7.6% and 37.7% of 4G and 3G users respectively out
of the total subscribers, and forecasted to increase much further
in the near future. On the other hand, there were more than 550
million mobile Internet users which implies that there are huge
business opportunities in both mobile application and mobile
commerce. Since the Group has been in the related mobile
phone industry for decades, mobile phone operating system and
mobile internet would be surely the key business areas that the
Group is interested in. So besides the recent investment in Jolla
Limited, the Group is actively looking for further opportunities
which will further enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 51, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampao Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Science degree in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. LUO Xi Zhi, aged 57, joined the Group in October 1995
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2002. Mr. Luo is also the Financial Controller of the
Group’s PRC operation. Mr. Luo holds a certificate in Accounting
from the Finance Academy of Jiangxi Province. Mr. Luo has
over 20 years of financial and accounting experience in the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Mr. Luo was the chief
accountant for Zhaoqging Sz Di Telecom Co., Ltd.
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Mr. WANG Yu, aged 49, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHANG Wing Seng, Victor, aged 77, last held the position
of Managing Director of APCG Business Pte. Limited. Prior
to this, Mr. Chang was the Managing Director of Singapore
Technologies Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd. based
in Beijing for 2 years. Mr. Chang had held various senior
management positions over 25 years with the Singapore
Technologies Group, mainly as the Director of Finance. Mr.
Chang was a graduate in Accounting from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology, Melbourne, Australia and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Chang had also
completed the Program for Management Development at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.
Mr. Chang was a certified public accountant in both Singapore
and Australia. Mr. Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 1999.

Mr. WONG Lit Chor, Alexis, aged 56, graduated from the
University of Toronto, Canada in 1981 with a bachelor degree
in Arts majoring in economics and commerce and has obtained
a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1987. Mr. Wong has over 30 years
of banking, investment, corporate finance and securities dealing
experience gained from working as a senior executive in a
number of listed local and PRC financial services companies. Mr.
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of two other
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2006.
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Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FOK Wai Ming, Eddie, aged 47, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in January 2014. Mr. Fok
is also the Financial Controller of the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. He graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of Science in Engineering
and the University of Wolverhampton with a bachelor degree in
laws and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fok has years
of financial and audit experiences in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the Company
has complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG
Code, except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st December,
2014. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent. To the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 16 to 18.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 24 to 28.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
Five Board meetings were held in 2014. At the Board meetings,
the Board reviewed significant matters including the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and half-year report. At
least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
to all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other Executive Directors presented.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in RZE—NF SEELEEET SR ILH
2014 is set out below: #HnT
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Directors Eo] FEIXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) RINESE (EE) 4/5
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEZRE 5/5
Mr. Wang Yu EREE 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B 5K 5 o A 5/5
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHXYEAE 5/5
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FEiRmE L 4/5

Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.
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Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:
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Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chang
Wing Seng, Victor, an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Company Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary
of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
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website.
The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year FNEZEEeRNFRAZAXRNLRSZEEXNBHE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members E\E%Z ED Y N
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members 8 GEINE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) Bk Bk (F) 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis XYL A 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FERIME L 0/1
Executive Director HITESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2 NEXE 1/1

24



Corporate Governance Report

A meeting was held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 107. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 108. Share options
granted under the Company’s share option plan are disclosed
on pages 124 to 126.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor, an
Independent Non-executive Director. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year with full
attendance by the committee members and the external auditors
of the Company as well. The Company Secretary prepared
full minutes of the audit committee meetings with details of
discussions and decisions reached. The draft and final versions
of minutes were sent to all committee members within a
reasonable time after each meeting.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as

ERZBEeRNh BN TESTAEAR
HPF - AAGHAEXEREANB -BZREE
SEXTRABIUFFNTERTE KB RLE QAW
EHAERZESNE - BERZEGRREHER
WEREAFTERMEELDLIRXERER

ERREGEFRIBITMAEHE -ARAZ
SNEZBMERLE RS 2EABIEER
BEeXBRMA -HMEERSRITHRABIA
REZZBESRERLFESH-

ERZEERFAGRETMAEH 28ZE
EXERARBINEZBENG A B E - AR W
ECRAEERZECRR LB RLE
BRAWAFIERERZRE - R BERME
RORBSEHREZAERBEAANBEXTE2EZE

KB -

BEREREENFAZAKREERZEEKNEHRE
ERIBERWT

follows:
Membership and Attendance REREERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/S
Members IB4=! PN
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHHTES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) BB EE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis BRI L E 2/2
Dr. Law Chun Kwan R iE T 1/2

26



Corporate Governance Report

During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2014. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year REZEERNFACHANERSZEENELF
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members eRIBERET
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members 8 EEPR
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINESE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu TFREAE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 1§ 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis | A 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan ERIRIE LT 0/1

A meeting was held in the year, in which members of the
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2014
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to
47.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
28th May, 2014, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2014. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$820,000 (2013:
HK$820,000). In addition, HK$40,000 was charged for non-audit
service, which was for interim review service (2013: HK$38,000).

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie, the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of
internal controls and to the Audit Committee the review of all
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organization doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to
time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group
from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a corporate website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2014 annual general meeting (2014 AGM”) was held on
28th May, 2014. The attendance record of the Directors at the
2014 AGM is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

general meetings

HES

Directors o] R K& RE

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINESE (FE) 1/1

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEBZKRE 11

Mr. Wang Yu FREE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHHTES

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 8ok B e A& 1/1

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis =AM R A 11

Dr. Law Chun Kwan R ImE T 0/1

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2014 AGM.

In respect of the Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, Dr. Law
Chun Kwan, an Independent Non-executive Director, was unable
to attend the 2014 AGM as he had other engagements on that
day.
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).

32

REZEHE

AARRREABEREE O EERZ ALR
BEBEY YEEESEZ A AAAGLR
RE—RARRBAREIRE 2 RE- 51
BT AR AR BT - RRT TR B
B AF ARG AR -

BREREF

TXEHNRIFEEEE T ROB T Z 58 H 14
BERATRBEZARGRRE THENHME:

FERRBFREAMBRREINAE

REBEARB 2 RAARFESSE HHEHE IR
ARADHETRA (HAERAKRRBEMBIERAK
SLEZRER)NESF TOZ - ZHRRRELH
f-AEESRARBRREHIAG RRAEKE
HBEREERARAZEM BRI AR A
ExedRRNWERNBR -ZEEH KA
AR ZFIRER BB & F B RAREMAE
EEW/ FRZEEREAFTX -

E=EeANEREABAEEAREMQBEAARSR
TR AG - RIBEALQF 2 A RADRIES9 -
RRARRAREMBZRRAEBES EPEH
SHRBURR HELERNEGLERBZIRER
NBAEZER —RIEE -

WMEFE R EEREEHRE =+ —(21)8
MBBRBEEIAR  AVREERE NN\~
FRFAE (TRAE]) BT4EHRZ S - HRR
TBREAE



Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including
a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company
(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

()  Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
(i) not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

(i)  The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

(i) Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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(iv)

W s 2
BEABEE

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The

Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the

shareholders’ questions.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates
are set out in notes 38 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 48 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

WARRANTS

Details of the warrants of the Company are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December, 2014 and
31st December, 2013 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Wang Yu and Dr. Law Chun Kwan shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors, the chief executive and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

Ex=pE 8%

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
BNERE (TRIEE]) TR (M)

Beneficial owner

BB A

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
|V RE

Beneficial owner

BEamlEAA

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)

Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

EFRVTEFTRBUFATETZEHEER
BARBZARMAAARE SR AL

EERTHRARRKROKRERR G Z
B

RZFE—MNFE+_A=+—H EF 1THEHK
&?Bi—rﬂ ZARAKRARREEBZE (EER
BHERIEGD ([FHRBAEEG]) EXVED)
Z%Tﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬁﬂifﬁﬁ?%&ﬁ/ﬁﬁ?ﬁ FHRHERK
BIEXVHETRESH MG AR REBHE
REGFBRAT ([BRH]) MEaRAE (B2
ERFRIBEF R AEEOB @ik imE 1E sk
RIEEB 2R RAR) « AL ARRQRIR
}F E5 KB EEDIEI52&F B 2 B A
RKE: HBRBEEE LT AR ERETH
HFR G 2EEFR (AR Mg AR R
BT ER AR

AR A FREE.10E T2 EEK

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
FBE®T (AR ERT
EEREE REABDLHE
188,300,013 22.71%
267,996,285 32.33%
456,296,298 55.04%
1,500,000 0.18%
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Note: B 3 -

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated ZERMBEREE XS FMAK 2 A R Future
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust, 2000 Limited$$ %5 @ Mz AR RS A BRI%x4E - i
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children. BREHEFLZHEEETEFE -

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the X E R R A A R S B AREE B 2 IR ()
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated NARB R B E o
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives BREXEBEEINTE - S RITHABRIEEH
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in EARZE—NOF+_A=+—HEEHEER
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of AR AFAMAEEZE (R REFRBAFK
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31st B AR B AR AR (D 2 R SA B o
December, 2014.
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SHARE OPTIONS BB e

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in RNATERESE 7 BEHAGESTBEHEN
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The following o9 - TERWEAATIERIEFEANZET) :
table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise  at beginning during at end of
Date of grant price of the year the year the year
=B THEE FORKRTRE FRTE FLERTE
HK$
BT
Category | - Directors
BIE-ES
Mr. Lau 12.7.2013 0.255 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
Elbes
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi 12.7.2013 0.255 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
BEZRHE
Mr. Wang Yu 12.7.2013 0.255 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
TRAE
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 12.7.2013 0.255 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
KT
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 12.7.2013 0.255 1,500,000 (1,500,000) -
BANEE
Dr. Law Chun Kwan 12.7.2013 0.255 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
BiRME L
Total for directors 14,000,000 (1,500,000) 12,500,000
EESh
Category Il - Employees
ENE-EE
Employees 12.7.2013 0.255 3,300,000 (3,200,000) 100,000
B8
Category Ill - Consultants
EINE-EH
Consultants 12.7.2013 0.255 300,000 - 300,000
B
Total for all categories 17,600,000 (4,700,000) 12,900,000

Fi B SRl 485t
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions nor contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31st December, 2014, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

FERR

BB R ARIR & 75 M BB R 0] 33615 P &
EZIERREMIIR R_T—WF+ A
=T A ARAEEFTIRREARFD &
TTRATREE AR

A REAEFREE10E T2 EEK

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FBE®RT (AR ERT
FTERRER 54 ZBERHE REZ2BS L
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 22.71%
BkE rRETEEA (M)
Beneficial owner 267,996,285 32.33%
ERmBEAA
456,296,298 55.04%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 22.71%
FEEE et ERsa (M2)
Notes: M 5

1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.

1. RERNBEEBEZHESIMALZAF
Future 2000 Limited$§ B - MZ AR B —2#E
G ZeREIZEEARERLE A
BRETLZ-

2. REZBFLHPEGRD ARNFELRLEERER

Future 2000 LimitedZ BRR K& 1T =5 2 — A
FRER SR ARBEEARR R
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 31.4% and 8.3%, respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 66.6% and 36.6%, respectively, of the
Group’s total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 19 to 34 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

kB R A A
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31st December, 2014,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No material significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting

of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

I B DO Tel : +852 2218 8288

TEE © +852 2218 8288
55 : +852 2815 2239

B M % A

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEETHEER11158
Tk H>254&

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 138, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31st December, 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

BHEREZRERIAIMER
(REREEMERLZAERAR)

RIZBEITTE B BEZHIIN F48EFE138H
PEREZERERAR (TEAF]) REMBL
Al (iR [ ERE]) 2548 Hﬁ&&% CBEERC
E-NE+-_A=1T—Hz&Ha RRFAMBHR
NE-BEZALFEZEAEZEARARL HE
RAEEHRNGAEERNER UKRTESS
BRBMEREMHAER

EENRAMBRRAREZERR

BERREFARERERALEGHMAGRML
BEMBRELERNREL (RAED) 2HKE
RERBLEEARMIREAYHHRER L
BREERARERSEAMBRRMLEZA
#B Eﬁ% 'Lxﬁi*/\ﬁﬁﬁ‘%#ﬁ%%T\ﬁEEEﬁé,ﬁﬁ‘Fii
SRR BBz E AR -

BB zEE

AITZBEDRBEATZERTIEHZERE
MBHRBRER YRRARE (RAE) B
QUIRER BRI E  BRULIAIN  RITZ &
EREEMB N NI TIRARE AR &
ERHEMALTE ESAERE-



China Fortune Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BT R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December, 2014 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER BERERE

We draw attention to note 17 to the consolidated financial EEENBNSATHBRERNWT17  EH
statements which describes the renewal application progress for it EEBE I FAWNIBEHETZEE RS
the mining operating permit being carried out by the Group. Our B EEVWERNEBERREREESR

opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

BDO Limited BRI GCGEZSHMBEMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HESIED

Ng Wai Man HER

Practising Certificate Number: P05309 HEEZ5RE  PO5309

27th March, 2015 —ET-RF=A=++tA
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SEEEBAR

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z —F—UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
that may be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising

on translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

3
HERA

EH

H A

Ho s ok K B 18
HE R HR AR
THEHR

PREEERER 2 BB R R

DIEBE QR ZEE

BR P15 7% A5 18
FrigmiEe

FEER

Ht 2w A 7]

EERERSD

RN EBmEMEEZ

R ER

FEZEAKA

EHFREER:
ZAN/NETEZ 2SN
FEFR IR o

IEFE2mARA:

ZN/NSIE SN
FEFR B MR

BRER
=N

Notes
B 5

17
18

10

11(a)

15

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THT
57,587 198,344
(49,027) (182,770)
8,560 15,574
5,614 4,826
(1,420) (1,110)
(10,408) (10,839)
(30,040) (25,728)
(1,323) (1,323)
= (118,637)
(1,369) (604)
(30,386) (137,841)
= 29,659
(30,386) (108,182)
(7,178) 11,359
(37,564) (96,823)
(24,482) (59,831)
(5,904) (48,351)
(30,386) (108,182)
(29,474) (52,216)
(8,090) (44,607)
(37,564) (96,823)

(2.96) centsfil

(7.28) centsfll

N/AT 38 H

N/A j#




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BRI T

At 31st December, 2014 A-Z—WN&E+—-_A=+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FH&xT FAT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment B K 3 1 16 11,311 13,919
Mining right R 17 279,771 286,485
Investments in associates BN ZIRE 18 3,411 1,023
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 20 10,303 10,303
Club memberships gRes 21 1,106 1,221
305,902 312,951
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 6,502 7,239
Trade and other receivables EWE SRR &
H e AR K 23 14,919 20,766
Amounts due from JE U B /B R A
non-controlling shareholders FEIEHIERR R 2 FRIB
of subsidiaries 24 3,767 4,171
Cash and cash equivalents BekBESEEY 25 71,264 96,581
96,452 128,757
Current Liabilities PR
Trade and other payables EBAESEFRR
H b e AR AR 26 25,080 30,170
Amounts due to related parties e BE AT 2 5E 36(a) 3,167 1,642
Amount due to a non-controlling J,EH— BLEE
shareholder of a subsidiary NAE—AIEESI
IR B 2 FRIB 24 405 -
Tax payables eI REIE 6,486 6,532
Warrants R IEE 30 1,588 -
Other borrowings HiEE 27 15,498 15,870
52,224 54,214
Net Current Assets REBEEFHE 44,228 74,543
Total Assets less HWEERRBEE
Current Liabilities 350,130 387,494
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2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T THET
Capital and Reserves EXRf#HE
Share capital % S 28 82,906 82,316
Reserves ] 112,966 141,219
Equity attributable to owners of ZARATHEE AEEER
the Company 195,872 223,535
Non-controlling interests FE 172 ) 1 2 87,066 95,156
282,938 318,691
Non-current Liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 31 67,192 68,803
350,130 387,494
On behalf of the Board REEZE
Lau Siu Ying Luo Xi Zhi
2 /)& BB
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
*TE o
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Non-current Assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current Assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Other payables
Warrants
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net Current Liabilities

Total Assets less
Current Liabilities

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

@

[ wm

EEBRERA A
= — P04 5

Statement of Financial Position

B B AR 0 &

At 31st December, 2014 A-Z—WN&E+—-_A=+—H

Notes
B aE
ERBEE
WERARZ®RE 19
HREBEE
H th & U BR 3K
HeRReEED
=R
H fth JE S BR 3X
R IEE 30
FERTH B A R 2 FTE 19
RBEERE
HEERRBARE
BARREE
% < 28
G 37

On behalf of the Board

Lau Siu Ying

g~

CHAIRMAN

FE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T THET

53,578 54,864

287 282

13 5

300 287

1,214 1,166

1,588 -

55,236 56,456

58,038 57,622

(57,738) (57,335)

(4,160) (2,471)

82,906 82,316

(87,066) (84,787)

(4,160) (2,471)
REREZE
Luo Xi Zhi

BEZ

DIRECTOR

EF
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 EHE T —NF+_-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAREAER
Share Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Statutory option  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FEHIE
BA  RGRE  BHEE  RERE  LEES B BHER a5 Bx ER8E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL TEL TEL T TEL TAL TEL T TR
(Note i) (Note ii (Note iii) (Note iv) (Note v)
(W) (i) () () (W)

At 1st January, 2013 RZE-=£-F-H 82,166 392,962 2,481 77,306 30,132 - (311,241) 273,806 139,763 413,569

Loss for the year FEEHR - - - - - - (69,831) (59,831) (48,351) (108,182)

Exchange differences arisngon ~~ EIESNEBAE

tranglation of foreign operations ~ ME4ZELZE - - - 7,615 - - - 7,615 3,744 11,359

Total comprehensive income FEZEEUA

for the year - - - 7615 - S eS3) (216 (44607 (96,823
Recognition of equity-settled BRRRESENRN

share-based payment expenses  AEEZ [z BF - - - - - 1,562 - 1,562 - 1,562
Issue of shares upon exercise of R {T{E B IRERFE TR

share options 150 233 - - - - - 383 - 383
Transfer of reserve upon exercise of RERIETERERE R

share options - 116 - - - (116) - - - -

At 31st December, 2013 RZE-=ZF+ZA=1-H 82,316 393,311 2,481 84,921 30,132 1,446 (371,072) 223,535 95,156 318,691

Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (24,482) (24,482) (5,904) (30,386)

Exchange differences arising on EBREMEEL

translation of foreign operations ERER - - - (4,992) - - - (4,992) 2,186) (7,178

Total comprehensive income FEZELAMA

for the year . . . 4,992) . S padg) (94T B0%0)  (37564)
Issue of shares upon exercise of T RIER E TR

share options 470 1,101 - - - (872) - 1,199 - 1,199
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ R{TEE LT RREER

unlisted warrants Bk 120 492 - - - - - 612 - 612

At 31st December, 2014 RZF-BETZA=1-8 82,906 394,904 2,481 79,929 30,182 1,074 (395,554) 195,872 87,066 282,938

Notes: B

()  The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share () B aEERBERACHEBHEEI KA
capital in excess of nominal value.

(i)  The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal (i) HrFEEEMEERBATZROEERERR
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal AR —NMNANFETEBEARTREMET
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the RO EBERERE-
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

(i) The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on (i) BRERBERSIEBZEE/BEFEEN
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into BRERIINEBMES 2 W/ BE-
presentation currency.

(iv) The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable (v, “EESEEARASEETHREARKM
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic (MBI ZHBRAR 2 E@ENATHREZ
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’ FEE WA AREEZERENBEARRTF
losses of the PRC subsidiaries. E2EE-

(v)  The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options (v) BREGREEFEECELDEHRITEZEREZ
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granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

DNFE HBREEMBERERMIIHARND B
AEMNR RS2 G REE TR -
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2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEH
Loss before income tax M FT1S B A S 18 (30,386) (137,841)
Adjustments for: R
Equity-settled share-based 122 f b 45 DARR 19
payment expenses ABERINZER - 1,562
Interest expenses MERX 1,323 1,323
Interest income FLEMA (2,432) (1,474)
Impairment loss recognised in MEWE ZERR
respect of trade and H b IR BR R R
other receivables B EE - 1,268
Impairment loss recognised in PIRIBE R 2 REEE
respect of mining right - 118,637
Impairment loss recognised in HHE MR AR R EER
respect of plant and equipment 991 -
Impairment loss recognised in MEMEERRRERE
respect of club memberships 110 -
Share of results of associates DR E R T 2 EAE 1,369 604
Write down of inventories T & #MOm 298 1,296
Recovery of write down of 5 B MUR B E
inventories (628) (2,269)
Depreciation of plant and WMEREEITE
equipment 1,657 1,781
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of HEMIEEE &R
plant and equipment 2 &8 (W) 295 (147)
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Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts
due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Increase in amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Decrease in trade and other payables

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of
plant and equipment

Interest received

Payment for acquisition of
shares in an associate

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

EEREBDHZLERLHE

TR D

B 5 B
) T T

G PE R
REREA D/ ()

e — M B A A — & SR HE 1
PR IR R IR 48 A0

FETE 5 8RR
H Al AT BR BB

mEEs (A FBREFE

REEH
HE RS KR 2 PSR IR

2 WA 8
Wi — KB E QR 2 3K

BEAHLERE
BERE M&E

RETZHMAREFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
(27,403) (15,260)
1,067 26,485
5,847 22,862
404 (524)

405 -
(6,413) (24,199)
(26,093) 9,364
- 200

2,432 1,389
(3,750) -

- (8,184)

(635) (195)
(1,953) (6,790)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance from a director

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

Proceeds from placing of
unlisted warrants

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of unlisted warrants

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term highly liquid investments

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_—F

BMEEH
KE—BREEZBER
RITERB R 1T D

P15 3R
Ao & 3F L MR B RE 2 FT1S 3R0R

RITEESE E MR EE R
BT D 2 18 5E

METHAEREFE

RERREEEY (BD)
12 b0 % 8

FUzRERREEEY

R e

FRZBAERRESEEY

RERREEEUERIN

Re LRTHEST
I_J//HJ % |+I'—%_LHH¢X§

rERERER

—NE+ZA=+—HILFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
1,525 673
1,199 383
1,600 -
600 -
4,924 1,056
(23,122) 3,630
96,581 89,371
(2,195) 3,580
71,264 96,581
18,764 28,741
52,500 67,840
71,264 96,581

(2}
(2]
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GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal
associates are set out in Notes 38 and 39, respectively.

—RER

ARABABREERE-NN\—FRRE
() FaREFMA L2 ZHREER
RNE EROHDEEBEHERHBRAF
([BRFT)) e ARRAZ B AR REK
ERARANKBELESEMA L Z A
A]Future 2000 Limited ° &K A sE 3=
EREZEEMB N FEFRIAAE
B —EREE-

ARBZYEEESARE (ARE]) -
HRARRTINEE LT RITERR 4
aMBmExegNET ([BT]) 25

ARBBREERAR -AEBZXBE
BRPHEREBEVSHEFERBBEMG - 3
BHSHEREEREELL URKXEE -
FRWEACHAERMIER - AEX 2
BRARIREEBE QA2 EBD RIS
FE38 %39 °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAETARAYKREEDN ([HFEH

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) FEIE AR )

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1st (a) FRAFE AT E BB IREE
January, 2014 B-R-F-—MF—F—HEX
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and ERGTENENEy HEMBEEERY

HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities 4] BafE
Amendments to Investment Entities BB HREED REER
HKFRS 10, F10%% BB RE
HKFRS 12 and EAIFE125 Rk
HKAS 27 (2011) BEGERF2TR
(ZF——%) 27
Amendments to Recoverable Amount BEEGHENFENR 2 FUBEEZ
HKAS 36 Disclosures for CH) BEEkE
Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and RS ERNEFy FEMEIARSE
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge BE Bitmextk
Accounting
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies B (RS BRE BE
ZBZE®)
—REE21H
The adoption of these amendments has no material RNZEETHAEE 2 P 5 REAE
impact on the Group’s financial statements. mMERTE-
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FAEEBMBEHREER ([FEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) EMEER ) (&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EMEMAE M KEMZFETAENETE
not yet effective BHBIREER
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant AEEWEEEREMN T EBEME
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, IR HE RN A AE EE K 5 [ B 75 R R 4B
but are not yet effective and have not been early o AV S CHES L e U

adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2010- BRI HRE S —E-ZEEE-F

(Amendments) 2012 Cycle? (B3TR) ——_FEHzF
[ i

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2011- &5 B % & | —E——FZC-E

(Amendments) 2013 Cycle! (BRT &) ——ERHsE
& Bt

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2012- ERM RS S “E-—FE-F

(Amendments) 2014 Cycle® (BFIR) —MEBHF
[ e

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative® EEeENF1Hy REREK
HKAS 1 B

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable EBEER BEMEREHY
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and F165REE G BEEE N~
HKAS 38 Amortisation? ERF38% 2 BT

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate BB EBNER Y BUFKHRZE
HKAS 27 Financial Statements? CHI RS

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments® BB IS H L SRIAS

FOR(ZF—MF)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BB HE LR REZBEBEN
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its F10REBe: AgAEREY
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture® KB $085 7 (&7] BEEHES

EYN
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? EARBREESD EERTERP
E145
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRI L EEAHMA
Customers* F155%
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 1 R-ZZE—NFE+A—HBeskz&MRAKBZ
July, 2014 FEABER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions 2 R-ZE—NFE+A— Bk 2 &RABZ

oceurring, on or after 1st July, 2014 FEHBNETZRIEM
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 3 RZE—RF—A—H"xZ2ER®BZ
January, 2016 FEBMEER

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 4 R-ZE—+F— A Bz gMRAKBZ
January, 2017 FEHBEER

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 5 R-ZZE—N\F—A—BskZ2E&MRABZ
January, 2018 FEBBER
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 2011-2013
Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment to clarify how the
gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
are treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model. The carrying amount of the asset is restated
to revalued amount. The accumulated depreciation
may be eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount
may be adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and
the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on
materiality and aggregation, the presentation of
subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the
disclosure of accounting policies.

Although the amendments do not require specific
changes, they clarify a number of presentation issues
and highlight that preparers are permitted to tailor the
format and the presentation of the financial statements
to their circumstance and the needs of users.

RRAEEMBHREER ([FEY
BHREEQ]) (&)

(b) E ML KREMZHET - AEMEET &

BYBHEER (&)

—E-EFE-FT--FBEH- =%
——EE-F-=HFBHR-F—=
FE-EF-NFAMZFERE

RIEFENERFRONETHET
A RI| R 3R B AT PR N TB BT 2 4 05 1 R
MBI ER - BEFREHELE
SETERIE16 [ - WE L&)
IR BRGAEREAEMGEL
FARRMERRFINEZRESA-
EERMERINEEGHSRE - 25T
ErEEERREELH I 25K
EEANASHEEREE -H2h
AEHAR MAFAFENSHES
HEREREERLT R RES
BRrRIEHEMER I EZE-

BB EAFIR BT - RERE

BERENEREEETERFIRHM
EEMKTERER 25/ 5 B
RZBEBREFABERBEE Sl

BEAMETTREREERD A
METEAS AL FERRAT
SR AR A AR R R
SRR BEE 2 B R 2IHR -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

The key areas addressed by the changes are as
follows:

—  Materiality: an entity should not aggregate
or disaggregate information in a manner that
obscures useful information. An entity need
not provide disclosures if the information is not
material;

— Disaggregation and subtotals: the amendments
clarify what additional subtotals are acceptable
and how they should be presented;

— Notes: an entity is not required to present the
notes to the financial statements in a particular
order, and management should tailor the structure
of their notes to their circumstances and the
needs of their users;

— Accounting policies: how to identify a significant
accounting policy that should be disclosed;

— Other comprehensive income from equity
accounted investments: other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures should
be separated into the share of items that will
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss and
those that will not.
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2. RABAMBREEN (1EEY

BHREEQ]) (&)

(b)

EBE AR ERLZH T AEIETE
BUBHEEER (&)

BB ENBIR 2B - KEE
e ()

BERESMS R EBHEBNT

- BERUWKF EEBIEESHF
DEENREAERER -ERE
ERBELIAEEZES:

- W kMo BRETEBIE
2RI R EAI 25

T EBBARBRERTZ
P HmAME BEERRE
BB N MR P T B M i 2

|
=

k=13

5|

/

Dy

)
2

- EHEE: MARANEREE
BEH A

- BEAEARREZHEMZEW
@ BERARIRAEREZHAM
P E W EE YN EERKE M
TEEF O BERGaCBEARE
Hif e
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. MAEEBMEBE LD ([E5H
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BagERR ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EMEMAE M KEMZFETAENETE

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
— Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.

BUBHEEER (&)

ERETEREIRREREFEL
3B ZIBFT — BB EMBE 2T
BE A%

BB ERE16R 2 BRI E A
N /REENTAHEYE BE R
RBRBENE-BEGHERE
385 BRI Bl A —HAI R ER R
BN ERBEEESRENE
BAEHE  ZBRARATHERBR
WER EBLEERARANGE:
AR B B B a5 B E R T
EREBBE-

BRETERE2TR 2B - B
BHRERZEHZE

BRESHERBESANBE LMY
WRFPUARDEZEREMBE LR
BEMBELEZRE -
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2,
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

2. RABRMBHREEN (EFEY
BHRELER]) (£)

(b) E ML REMZ I AEMEETE

BUBHEER (&)

ERNBRELEAFIR (= —MN
F) -¢@MIA

BB HRE AR B S ER BT
BEDERFTEZHMER - LERE
XNFBEMENABKMAELBRERE
BTE (EBEDIE) AREEER
EMZANKRAEEAINEAERE
EEASHEZEHR LA (EHNRS
//lufF-iH%f( BIER ) —RIZEB ARG E -
WZEREBEA CENARFERIK
Hié,%’ﬂfﬁiml%&ﬁj’iﬁﬁkéig J
FEAEOBRESRFEARCEBIA
EAFEFAEMEEmRA Z 5 G
2 - BB A N &Y MR E L A A
HoEE DR AYEFAEMEA
WAZ AR ELIERFIEEE 2K
TH-FIEHMEBERRATAEZER
FEFAEZZFAGTE-

FREMHRELERESRHIALIFZ A
FEFAFABm 2 TG EZRERE
BEMAFHEREEBRERZRN (R
RTBESTERNERZCELE
BRI ) AR —REPEFTHE -
EERRBMBEHRRAEERRER
BB

BEMBRELERNFORSAEES
FTERE3RIA N AEZER
DENGERTE HEEEEAFER
ABHZHBABRIN MEEREE
REs s B e A FEESHSERE
ﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬁl SRR FRIFEELLIEAR
SETEHECAERIR © tHN - BB R
EREAFIRRE F B G ERFH39
HRILERVBEEMMBREZR

.
TE e
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

RRAEEMBHREER ([FEY
BHREEQ]) (&)

(b) E ML K EMZHET - AEMETE

BYBHEEER (&)

ERMBRMEENEI0RREBET
RS8R 2B -~ REEFHAKE
RAREELECEANEELERE
A

ZEFTERERAEBERAHAZ
PERHEIIABER & THER

BB REE-EXFH PR —HE
% AR 2B EEE - R
ERGHERIBR-EXHNEE
AEERTHEREENGEREN
BERRZ B ER WS HEER-

BERUBREENEISR-FFEN
A

Ik TR A 2 B e 37 — TR B8 0 H) Wi as e 7R
ER - ZERNZORE R E SR
AR 2 A P < B8 1 L 9 R R T i K
RETEF ZeBERREHZER
BB IR TR F 7 dn S AR P UCER Y
RE-FBW B RS ERE155R G ER
REThSRRES (BEEAES
FERNF185E [Was | BAEGFHERSE
115 [2EA K] RAR=RE) -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEBMBHREERN ([EEHM

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) R ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) E ML KL ZFET - AENERT &
not yet effective (Continued) B EREER (E)
HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with ERYBRELEUNFISE-FFEN
Customers (Continued) WA (#&)
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps BEANEREEAFE15FRERK AR
approach to revenue recognition: SERRER M S
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer F—4%: BRAERTPHEYLY
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in B HBRAATHENEE

the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price F=4 ETXHE

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each FUH: BRHGIEIEESEY
performance obligation BE

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each R4 RNEBYHUET=REEDR
performance obligation is satisfied g

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular ERPBREEREISF S EET

revenue related topics that may change the current W AR ENE TS %5 1E5

approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also e B AR BB B IS R SR IR

significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative TER Z A ko s RN EEE IR T B UL

disclosures related to revenue. AN E LRS-

The Group is in the process of making an assessment AREBETEZETNTKBITEH

of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs. B 5 R v B E - EEH A

The directors so far concluded that the application Bl ER B ERBZENL&IEE]

of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material EEMBERELENBTE iﬁ$§%2

impact on the Group’s financial statements. MIEHRRELEBERTE
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance provisions

relating to the preparation of financial statements

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation of
financial statements will apply to the Company in its
first financial year beginning on or after 3rd March,
2014 (i.e. the financial year ending 31st December,
2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact
on the Group’s financial position or performance,
however the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, would have impacts on the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The statement of financial position of the Company
will be presented in the notes rather than a separate
statement and the related notes need not be included,
while generally the statutory disclosures will be
simplified.

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In addition, these
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

2. RABAMBREEN (1EEY
BHREEQ]) (&)

(c)

B i R 7 3 5 2 H & 7B 2 Al A
rX

MEBRAGD (F6228 ) BN R
MBMER G ARRTH _E—N
FZA=ZBzEABZEEMEKF
E(HEE-_ZEZ—AF+_-_A=+—
HIEMBEFE)#EA-

EERR/AEEZ TR K KA
TERETE AMAHBBRAED (5
622% ) K HHEE M BRI 2 2HSMH
BERARE -ARAZHMBIRNEK
BRI 25 - T 3EE A — (EX8
o ARBABERBNE &%
ERBERS TR

CEL L P PRS2
2 AT EHEBEAER 5T
MIARATHENE-

ZEVBRRDIBEBEFEGMA
ERMBEVHHRESENRE It
S HEM B RMERB A IAES £
MRAEEE (RFHEDD) REZE
FREESE-
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3.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Associates (Continued)

Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5%-20% or over the term of the
relevant leases, whichever is
shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

An item of plant and equipment is written down immediately

to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher

than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the materials and supplies to
their present location and condition, is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period,
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences

in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at

arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be recognised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

3.

FTESFEE (&)
2B 1 15 R A

AR AEEE R E M EERE R
R RTE A E B 2 A A R B E R
AR %5 M A = 8 SRS S (BRI ST o

HE

PSR IR R IR IR SR E R TR Z
-

BRENRBERANFRERERRGFFAHE -
JERTE N A BN &7 & 2 E AR P PR
2 RETBEEMEFEREZ RV
AHRKXIER Y ATNEEBARBNL
Mz BEB - AREZERRAAERA
REGMEETEEHEXERS HIE B

BEHE -

EXEFADGAMBERREEMRBER
BB RS T RA Z AR E
RleZ@MER —REIABERRNE
ZHRERBECHAEAE MELEHREEE
AIEERAT A RRTOENANERZS
AR E S E R T RATA AT RE
B = FENARERR - N — AR 5 (EE A b
BN R A By RR M EENRE
BMaI R EREERIEERAT G
RAFESHEN AT ERRARFEE
kA&

75



China Fortune Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ—Z—NF+=-_F=+—AHIFE

3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is recognised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, cash and cash
equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
other reporting period subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Continued)

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Fair value measurement

The Company uses Binomial Option Pricing Model to
measure the fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market. Difference may arise between
the fair value at initial recognition (which, in accordance
with HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, is normally the transaction
price) and the amount determined at initial recognition using
the valuation technique. Any such differences is deferred
and not recognised in profit or loss. Amounts deferred
are recognised in profit or loss when pricing of equivalent
products or the underlying parameters become observable.
When the transaction is closed out, the amounts deferred
are released.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

3.

FTESFEE (&)
BT A (E)

HKaE (&)
BBHEAE S EZHBEEE (E)

REERIEHERSGETTHEHE - W B
BENIRE R -

AV EE

ARRFEA—AANETERLER LA
ARRSMGEZERTAZAFE-MF
AR ZATE (RREBMEHRE LR
F1BFE LB B G ERFIW - LBES
R BB ) B PR E R AT
BRBEVEFEEZE -ENZEEEY
SREN T EEERERER BEHTE
mZEEBXRBSERAAERE RT
CHRESERRRER - EXHFRK &
T BB MR -

BBRARE

ERMEENABEMBEESYHABL
AR N 0 B B HIRE A B A A B
Xz % BRENEIEERITRUYEE
ESBENERMG A AFHL (HER)
BAREMEZ A RRRSRASIRE
Z R o

RIETER

AEERMBEERKREREZ AL
MiEimiby KB EELDERE MEREN
BEB G ERIFEION 2 & IR ZHRIF
B R ILHERITEEE -



China Fortune Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z —F—UF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

(a)

(o)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of a mining company
in the Group (“Sifa Mining”) to conduct mining activities in
Huangshi City, Hubei Province, the PRC. The mining right
is amortised using the units of production method based
on the proven and probable mineral reserves. Sifa Mining
obtained a mining operating permit for 2 years starting
from 25th September, 2012 granted by Ministry of Land
and Resources of the PRC (R ZE AR KXMEE + &R
#B) (“MLR”), under which Sifa Mining was restricted to
exploration activities only and prohibited from exploitation
activities. The mining operating permit expired on 25th
September, 2014. Sifa Mining is not allowed to restart
any mining activities until a renewed mining operating
permit is obtained. During the year, the Group prepared
documentation as required and submitted the application
to MLR for a renewal of mining operating permit without
the prohibition of exploitation activities. At the date of this
report, the application is still under the final assessment by
MLR. In the opinion of the directors, it is highly probable
that the renewal application will be approved by MLR in
the first half year of 2015. If the renewal application was
unsuccessful or the prohibition on exploitation activities
was not released, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit of the mining business shall be reassessed
and the carrying amount of mining right may be impaired.

Production capacity assumption

The mining operating permit under renewal limits the
production capacity to 100,000 tons per year. In the
opinion of the directors, the application for increasing the
production capacity is procedural and Sifa Mining should
be able to obtain a mining operating permit with higher
production capacity without significant cost. In case the
production capacity limit cannot be increased, the carrying
amount of the mining right may be impaired.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Reserves estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
properties. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological,
technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity
prices.

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
the size, shape and depth of ore bodies or fields to be
determined by analysing geological data such as drilling
samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgments and calculations to interpret the data.

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate
reserves change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the
Group’s financial results and financial position in a number
of ways, including the following:

()  Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes
in estimated future cash flows.

(i) Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change.

(i) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

(iv) The carrying value of deferred tax may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as
discussed above.

HATRERZRZEERR
(4% )

o & 15

REDANANEERAZITERELE
AEEBERDNSZHEAERBEE - RFTE
e BRALAMRGE St MEBERR
BEFEHAETEIBER HTEEHE &
G BRI SRR EERA BB
K -EmBRNERER-

fAREZHER MK - BEAL
BRBRFBRSFHERBESNT EEEE
HiEGZRE - AR SRE - I TFed &
EEREHWEHE LA T URREHH
&

HAGREMAEERREBEETRZ
HIMm® mMEERIETERINELM
ERE HREREXASEIRMEMA
ey 2RFEZEPABIREER
EAREE U BEEARMBIN EHE
ETIEERE:

() MRBEIRKRBAEREZEHIRNETLEE
ERREE -

(i) fWTE FEAMBHIBREESM
REETUNETF REEZAEBRL
BEREMEE ABRERIKRZI
E REMEEASEMER-

i) M ERE BB SR BN
BRRR TR BRRAMA
YRR WIS E R REREBLE
REH -

(v BRI BEERE EX T H
BEBEERDNANRE -



TREEERERERAA

—E-MER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E BT R AR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

The provision for close down and restoration costs is
estimated by management based on the current regulatory
requirements issued by the Hubei Provincial Peoples
Government. Provision set up, if any, is reviewed regularly
by management to ensure it properly reflects the obligation
arising from mining and exploration activities.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st December,
2014, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately HK$14,919,000, net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$21,638,000
(2013: 20,766,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$22,081,000).
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes other borrowings as disclosed in Note 27 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting period
was as follows:

Debt =R

Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY
Net debt FEE

Equity R

Net debt to equity ratio

EXRERER

AEBZEAREEBBRDREAEE R
BEE EMAKRRIEHROR RN RER
A EARE NS YERREZER
BB LUK E R -

AEEEARBEREER (BEME27H
BEZEMES) RARAEE ARMERE
# (BREBTRARZEMFE) -

AR RS TR E AR - R B
FREFARRARIABAR RIEEF
ZHBES AEEEEBEERE BT
R 31T HY (05 3 TR T A L
2 PRSP LR

BERRZFAEHBELRNT

FREHERL X

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
15,498 15,870
(71,264) (96,581)
(55,766) (80,711)
282,938 318,691
N/A 7 N/A i B
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments

— at cost

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

6.

MBEEE
ERRERER (B2

ReMEEFEY)
AfhERE

— AR
MBEEE
BB AGTEZ

MBaRE
BRAFEFARREZ

MBaE

The directors considered that the carrying amounts

of the above financial assets and financial liabilities

carried at amortised cost approximate to their fair

value, except for the available-for-sale investments

carried at cost less impairment because the range of

reasonable fair values estimates is so significant that its
fair value cannot be measured reliably (Note 20).

ETRIA

(a) =@TAEF

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
85,308 118,919
10,303 10,303
44,080 46,255
1,588 -

EER /L RE KA E 2 8175
BEMMBABERFESEIZAFEM
MR ESIE 2 A
EREBRIN RARHEAGEAFESR
B AMEBLARSEMETERARTE

(Bf7¥20) °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s
major financial liabilities included trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, warrants and
other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign
currency bank deposits, other receivables and
trade and other payables.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

HK$

90

6. €I HE(£)

(b) HEBERBREZERFERKE

AEBZETRUMBEEBREAMHY
ERE BRESERA N EMEKER
K FEUCH B A R IR BB R 2 3K
B ReRRSEEY AREZER
MHABEERENESRA R EmE
MERZ ENBEEALZRE RBR
BENABEE ZFEMTAZH
ERERBERIERE - FRAZEZER
TAZRERBETSRR (HMNEE R
EMZRR) - EERRMTEE SR
e T SRR It F R 2 BUR e
EEEeEELERZFRAR  LE
R N B I RO REUE B HE i o

™15 E ke
() EEE

AREE % R E R R INE R
B ETERBIIERTER H
il FE U R K DA B FE S B 55 BR R %
H Al A ARAR o

HEESWPLEEH  NEBE LA
BEEERINEEBUIINZ &
FECEREREERBEZR
HEWT :

Liabilities Assets
=N BE
2014 2013 2014 20183
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FAT THERT FAT

BT 2,827

1,191 22 15
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EWMIEH(£&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEBREZEBERKE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEAK (&)
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) () sMmEEE (&)

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2013: 4%) appreciation and
depreciation in the functional currency of the
relevant subsidiaries (RMB) against the above
foreign currency. 4% (2013: 4%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 4% (2013: 4%) change in the
exchange rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant subsidiaries against the
above foreign currency would give rise to the
following impact to the Group’s loss for the year,
or vice versa.

Decrease in loss for the year FEEER
- HK$ — AT

In the management’s opinion, the above
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily
representative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposure at year end does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

AEEBXFEEEH BT 2 BEER
AR TERFIAEEIEHA
MEBARIEER (ARK)H
L INEABEREZEAS (ZF
—ZF 4% ) ZBURE 2 4% (=
T—=F:4%) RELEHINE
EEATEEHIRAIBEH) 2 5T(H -
FRESMEBBERARBEZ
SNEFTEEREE UREER
HEEANERIR (ZF—=
F 4% )2 S BAEBE B
BB A AT aE W Ll NI
AE BHFEBEEEENTH
2 R2ZIARe

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET

112 47

EEERR BRNFEMEHZ
BRI = BR AN AT E 2 R
B # bl SRR O AT I AR
& A SN R -
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6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continueq)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowing
(see Note 27 for details) as they are carried at
amortised costs. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rate of borrowing is fixed
(see Note 27 for details).

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st December, 2014, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 50 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s loss for the year and decrease/
increase accumulated losses by approximately
HK$356,000 (2013: HK$483,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank balances
at the end of reporting. The analysis is prepared
assuming these financial instruments outstanding
at the end of reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2013.

6. €I HE(£)

(b)

HERBEEEEREE (&)

mIERRE (&)
(i) FI=E L

HREEBE (FBRLMFE27)
PABESHRX AN DI ME - AR B 7R
SETEBEEREQTENER
B o 7K 5 1 3R By 30 48 N =R 3 0 K
Re-AMm EEEEEEMNER
BT eEATERZEHRE
KM = g o

HRNMEEZ R BEEME (F
BRME27) MAKE Y EF
MRS RENRRR -

RZFE-—NMFE+_A=+—8H"
=2 4e F3E, T F50%EF -
mprA B EBEFTE A5+
rEBEFEERBERLD 1T
i REEEE g R HE M
#41356,0008 T (— T — =4
483,000/ 7T ) °

FRGRESTEDEARERZ
HMGEE R ZFRIRITREBRZA
B R MEE - REZ DT
BRZEFNZHRBEE B HKRTT
2z T AREEFESEK
17t 50 F 2 L3,/ THILE
BEHEE N —FHRAHLHE
ZEEAENXEFHFE —F
—ZFZ AWM R M AR ELEE

A

17
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ®WMI A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BHEERBEZERERHE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank
balances. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition to credit risk on trade and other receivables,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through advances to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries of HK$3,767,000
(2013: HK$4,171,000). Because of its significance,
management has regular liaison with the counterparty
to understand their financial position and to identify
any early sign of potential problems. Should any
potential default risk arise, the Group’s management
will take prompt actions to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2013: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with five (2013: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

FERR

AEBZEERBREIERGHEKRE
SERREAMEKEIRR BB A
GIE=S %UEEHXE@ZZmAf§ZifE??£*@%°
ERERBREE RIS T - YN
%FW%%Z%EHI&R °

18 U E 5 B 3 K E A R KRR KM
OB EERBE—ERBEIEP
BREEXZEREEN G -ARFES
$%%ﬁ§ﬁﬂ%*EZEF&ﬁﬁ
NRZBEN AREREFPZARE
Bt REPEEME 2 QERE A
SEERESHEF ZHM BN ETH
BEEMGE -AEERETGERER
W B o

BREWE SRR REMEWERZE
BRI NREEITEARME R T#
o 51| 14 A% BR B 503,767,00078 7T (=
—=%F: 4171 ooo,%rc)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬂ
EERB -HNEHERN HEEES
E@E %ﬂ?ﬂ%%?%ﬁ%ﬁ#
AR HBANBRBEREE 2B B
i{ffﬂ/a&?@ﬁ(|ﬁ/ﬂ’ﬁ']$%%f§
EBegllRRRTESREREBEE-

AN - A AEEI9% (—Z T — =%
99% ) SRITFRFRA LR (ZF—=
FREMRT WAKEHREETR
PESEERR AN HRRXZHETF
REBREETRBRBETRRIFEE
WRIT WRBDESZEERRB
BR-
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6.

94

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the recognised of borrowings as well as the
cash flows from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

THE GROUP
Liquidity table
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MmEFH
BRA=R
%
2014 ZE-mF
Non-derivative financial liabilities 4B BEE
Trade and other payables ERESRAREMERRR -
Amounts due to related parties ERBEALZFE
- an associate -—FBERAZHE -
- adirector -—ZEZ7HNE -
Amount due to a non-controlling EN—BHBAR
shareholder of a subsidiary — I EHMRR 2B -
Other borrowings HitfEE
~ fixed rate ) 8.47

6. €I HE(£)

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

REE S @

ERRBECRERK AEBEEEY
HBEEERAREA/AEEZER
HEG 2R RBACFEY LRHE
RenBRBHzyE-BEEERR

fEEZERBERARGLEH 2 RS

N =
o

/1L

TREJAEBITERFETET R
Bz RBA N HFE ZRBREY
BREZAURRRERERAEE R
ERABRECRFRHGRE  BRENE
A& ZHRERE-

rEH

HEBEZ X
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year  cashflows  31.12.2014
iy
—E-ME
tZh
RERD R AHEEE =t-Bz
HR1ER 123{8A BE RELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TERT TR THET TR THERL
25,010 - - 25,010 25,010
500 - - 500 500
2,667 - - 2,667 2,667
405 - - 405 405
- - 16,811 16,811 15,498
28,582 - 16,811 45,393 44,080
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continueq)

THE GROUP (Continued)

Liquidity table (Continued)

2013 —E-=%
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ 4T £HEEE
Trade and other payables ENESETR
Hn e IR
Amounts due to related parties EREEALZFE
- an associate -—FBERRZHE
- a director -—ZEZIHE
Other borrowings HinfEg g
— fixed rate )

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

nEFH
BEI%
%

8.47

6. €I HE(£)

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

REBESER (&)
rEE (&)
FEEERK (&)
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year  cashflows 31.12.2013
i
—ZI-=%
+-AR
RERHK EA  AUBHE =+-H2Z
SR1EA 1Z3(E A S mEER BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL T T
28,743 - - 28,743 28,743
500 - - 500 500
1,142 - - 1,142 1,142
- - 17,214 17,214 15,870
30,385 - 17,214 47,599 46,255
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continueq)

THE COMPANY

Liquidity table

2014 —E-QNE
Non-derivative financial liabilites 3{T£HBEE

Other payables Hit E(TIRR
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBARZHE
2013 —E-ZF
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FHT &K EE
Other payables EitEAERR
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARZFE

96

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

mELH
ERF*
%

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

pill: 22!
AR
%

6. €I HE(£)

(b) HBEEBREEEERKE (&)
REBESER (&)
AT
FBEEF
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year cashflows 31.12.2014
R
—2-mF
+=A
RERY MR KEEEE =t-Hz
SM{EA 1238 A E1F REAH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FE FET TET ThER FE R
1,214 - - 1,214 1,214
55,236 - - 55,236 55,236
56,450 - - 56,450 56,450
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year  cashflows 31.12.2013
i
—E-=F
+-AR
RERHK AR XRUFEBE =t-HZ
SH1EA 1Z3(E A kS mEEE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL T T
1,166 - - 1,166 1,166
56,456 - - 56,456 56,456
57,622 - - 57,622 57,622
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. DB RL LT

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(a) HEHADEHRIZEHES Wiz -8

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e Mining business

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar
order. Corporate expenses, corporate assets and
corporate liabilities are not allocated to the reportable
segments as they are not included in the measure of
the segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

# BERBEZHLE

AEBEARHELRBREZETEE
BARE([XTEZERKRE]EMN
ZHEBEREENE

BE-T-MF+-A=+—HILF
R AEEEEMETZE B
A R RETRER LR
I B B RIR R A R TR B
EHWIHHEE U THB LA
HEEETSHA B2 S

. BRHTEEH
. RBEH

DEE R H 2 BIRTI2E B E
AINRANLTWERZ BIRETE - AR D
XXt bREERGEABILE
FPAZTEEERREN GO MRS
ERzo MRS DHMEERDEA
BR BALBERIEEZAZ2RD

7 o
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7.

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER
(Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment loss

Write-off of plant and
equipment

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss recognised
in respect of plant and
equipment

Write down of inventories

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current assets
Reportable segment liabilities

REIREFPH

QES 511§

A 2%® oA EE

TR 55 K B A 2 8

e s

SRR S B R R AR 2

BB EE
17 & MOR
T & MUY % [

AEHDMEE
FRBEERE

7.

THENRERE (F)

(a) TEHK

B8R

28 e W A
# BERRBEZHL (&)

BE_ZT-NE+-A=t—HL

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
BE
BREEX REER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT FHET
57,587 - 57,587
(9,518) (4,231) (13,749)
295 - 295
1,132 493 1,625
991 - 991
298 - 298
(628) - (628)
88,177 297,291 385,468
622 - 622
(7,681) (101,357) (109,038)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER

(Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continueqd)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Expenses used in the development of
mobile games

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates
— Available-for-sale investments
— Others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Warrants
— Others

Consolidated total liabilities

E BT R AR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE—Z—NF+=-_A=+—HIFE

7. DHERREEE (F)

(a) HEHEDBRIZHED W18
# BERRBEZHL (&)

2014
HK$’000
FH& T
W =
A 2HoD B RERE W
57,587
BRETEBATER
AIE2HmHEEE (13,749)
BrAEse B
(8,115)
M B A 2,432
I A 712
EZH (8,974)
DI E AR EE (1,369)
LS9 (1,323)
PRFTISTERTAR & K5 18 (30,386)
BE
AI2HROHBEE 385,468
KoM EEE
—HELRZKE 3,411
—AHEERE 10,303
—E At 3,172
REEERE 402,354
a8fE
AEwROHERE 109,038
Ko EXERE
—-”Hxﬁé*ﬁ 1,588
—Hfb 8,790
SBERTE 119,416
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7.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER

(Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continueqd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

7.

(a) HEHEDBRIZHED W18

# BERRBEZHL (&)

HE-_Z—=F+ZA=+—81

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
X
BEER RIEET st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
Reportable segment revenue KREINREFH
from external customers AI2Wmn HUE 198,344 -~ 198,344
Reportable segment loss A2WmnEEE (4,877) (122,728) (127,605)
Gain on disposal/write-off of W R B K %A
plant and equipment & 6) (156) (162)
Depreciation and amortisation 378 K # $4 1,152 602 1,754
Impairment loss recognised in =~ FLEWE SERZA X
respect of trade and other H th JE U BR 3K
receivables R R EEE 1,268 - 1,268
Impairment loss recognised in IR IBEEHER 2
respect of mining right RIEEE - 118,637 118,637
Write down of inventories T & U 1,296 - 1,296
Recovery of write down of 5B #Mos =
inventories (2,269) - (2,269)
Reportable segment assets AZ2WmoHEE 121,478 304,330 425,808
Additions to non-current assets IERBEERE 159 - 159
Reportable segment liabilities AZWoHBEE (10,653) (103,305) (113,958)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. DHERREXRE (/£)
(Continued)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TEHRSHBRAIZH DS Mz 18
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets m BEREEZFE (&)

and liabilities (Continueqd)

2013
HK$’000
FAET
Revenue Y 25
Reportable segment revenue and A2 o s RERE W
consolidated revenue 198,344
Loss before income tax BrRET B AT B 18
Reportable segment loss A2 EEE (127,605)
Interest income F EHSU\ 1,474
Miscellaneous income HIEUA 883
Corporate expenses TESZT (10,666)
Share of result of an associate DIE—KEE QN E 2 EE (604)
Finance costs B & AR (1,323)
Consolidated loss before income tax BRATSATER & B8 (137,841)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AZ2WmoHEE 425,808
Unallocated corporate assets ROBBEEE
— Investment in an associate ——REERRZITE 1,023
- Available-for-sale investments —AHEERE 10,303
— Others —Hth 4,574
Consolidated total assets MEEERE 441,708
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities AEZmoHaE 113,958
Unallocated corporate liabilities ApBERE 9,059
Consolidated total liabilities EBERRE 123,017
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102

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. DB RLLE (£)
(Continued)
(b) Geographical information (b) 1% E A
During 2014 and 2013, the Group’s operations and RIE—NFN_ZE—=F K&EEH
non-current assets are situated in the PRC in which all EBNIERBEEHMPNTRE M
of its revenue was derived. W EEREFRE-
(c) Information about major customer (c) BHEEEFZEH
During 2014 and 2013, there was no customer with RZE—NFER_FTE—=ZF TEX
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s ErzX S EANEEBIKZIBIEI0% °
revenue.
(d) Turnover (d) ZX3E
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the BEER D WS EWRREZATFEE
consideration received or receivable and represents E EHFPEKBRPUREELER
amounts receivable for goods sold and services EREIEHREEK 2B T EHE
provided in the normal course of business, net of T RS E MR IE-
discounts and sales related taxes.
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HittwzmREE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FAT
Impairment loss recognised in respect of gt & & A2 REER
club memberships (110) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FLEE M 5% HHER
plant and equipment BEEE (991) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 5t FEWE 5 BR 2k & E A
trade and other receivables FEW R RFER 2 BB EE = (1,268)
Exchange (loss)/gain fE X (BB (24) 11
(Loss)/gain on disposal/write-off of plant & /iR = M & E 2
and equipment, net (E18) " WE 2 3 E (295) 147
(1,420) (1,110)
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FINANCE COSTS 9. & KA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interests on other borrowings wholly BARAFATHERZ
repayable within five years HMEEZHE 1,323 1,323
. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FTIBHBE R
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
The amount of income tax credit REEEBRARZ
in the consolidated statement of gt e & 5045
comprehensive income represents:
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BVHAF — A Bl (> ¥ FT1E
(“EIT”) ([eEmER]) - -
Deferred tax (Note 31) RFERIE (PFFE31) - (29,659)
Income tax credit gt e - (29,659)
Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd (“Fortune EE(E8)BEBESERAR ([RE L
Shanghai”), EAREZBHEE S EMR QA (“Shanghai Bl EERERBEESERAR ([LE
Yuanjia”’), BT EREZEBMAREER 2 A (“Zhuhai BE|) KETEBERNZEERAQR
Reminda”) and EABEHEE B R A A (“Sifa Mining”) were (HETFEE | )RERERBEEEREA
established in the PRC and subject to the EIT rate of 25% B ([$E3pEZE ) NP B WAIR25%
(2013: 25%). (ZE—=F:25%) D EFEHREN
o
No provision has been made for income tax as the Group AR RNEBARNEE N B (Gt 2 ER
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the Fism A - i LTS R IR B o
year.

103



China Fortune Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E IR AR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ—Z—NF+=-_F=+—AHIFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

10. FiIGHER (&)

104

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the

loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax credit at the domestic income tax
rate of 25% (2013: 25%) (Note)

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
and utilisation of deductible temporary
differences

Effect of different tax rates of group
entities operating in other jurisdictions

Tax credit for the year

RNEZZAEHELEGEEEBRATZ
%%ﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁ%@?-
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT THET
R P15 T A S 18 (30,386) (137,841)
R FT 1S B R 25%
—E—=F:25%)
FEHRERS (M) (7,597) (34,460)
DIEME R ZERZ
MBeE 226 100
TR BRI T &
3,049 714
BARBRA BB &
(665) (663)
RERTIEEE R
BRI EE
MBee 4,226 3,814
Hih e R E B2
SEERETRNE ZE 761 836
FEMERR - (29,659)
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$156,531,000 (2013:
HK$139,817,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the estimated unused tax losses due to unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$41,044,000 (2013:
HK$29,013,000) that may be carried forward for a period
of five years from their respective year of origination. The
remaining unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$6,558,000 (2013: HK$7,045,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

10. FiIGHER (&)

RERPLEER - AEBE BT AE
EIMRR G F < & RS A HEEIR
%4 /156,531,000 L (=& —=
139,817,000/ 7T ) o B3 FA M 0% T8 R R 2R 4
R - L BT AT Z M ABAZH
HEBEEREEHEEE -fF AKRBERH
TE B 18 2 B 18 #) 541,044,000 7T (= &
— =% :20,013,00087L) ' Al HELKF
EREERF -F T RERTIEEIER
AERREA A e o

RERBEER AEBTEAHIHRE
B = 8 496,558,000 . (— T — =% :
7,045,000/ 7T ) ° BRI K 0] B8 2 A 7] 40
750 Ry 2= BB A DA 8K PE AR B s A1 P AR
RZEANPENEZERREEHEE
EEO

M AMATERBEEAEBALS LHE
2 EFSRBE-
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE

106

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Loss for the year has been arrived at after

(b)

charging:

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expense

Write down of inventories

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Depreciation of plant and
equipment

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments
(Note 12)
— other staff costs
— share-based payment expenses

— retirement benefit scheme
contribution (excluding
directors)

and after crediting:

Service income from provision of
logistics and promotion services

Interest income

Government grants

Z BB &

EERA/AIZFERAR

17 & MO
T & MO B =

BE R&E I E

8 T KA

—BEME (HE12)

—H B ITRRA

— AR 1D B E T
Xz ER

—RIREFIET B 5K
(TREES)

REA:

REDREREERBZ
AR5 A

GUISEL N

B #75 B)

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31st December, 2014 includes a loss of
HK$3,770,000 (2013: a loss of HK$1,529,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company (Note 37).

(a) FEBEAREHLE:

N FEFRERERXTAERARGLEE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
945 944
49,027 182,770
298 1,296
(628) (2,269)
1,657 1,781
5,006 6,197
15,113 10,820
- 370

3,269 1,768
23,388 19,155
2,301 1,599
2,432 1,474
33 863

(b) EREEEANENERE

HE-_Z-—MNF+_A=+—HIF
BZARRBHRBANEEEREERH

3,770,000/ T 2 518

—E—=4F:

J&181,5629,0008 7T ) * BB E XA
NAEF B KR EIE (M5E37) °
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12.EE &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2013: FRNENKERNTARUE(ZE—=F:X
six) directors during the year were as follows: M)BEEEaZHME0T:
Lau Chang Wong
Siu Ying Luo Law  Wing Seng, Lit Chor,
(“Mr. Lau”) Xi Zhi  Chun Kwan Victor Alexis Wang Yu Total
4 E
(T8%xl) BTy B Bxk B4 IR ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TER TET TEL TR TATL

2014 —E-QmE

Fees ik - = 50 100 100 - 250

Salaries and allowances Fe Rzl 3,989 180 - - - 529 4,698

Retirement benefit scheme contribution 3£ /K42 7|5t &1 3 3 16 - - - 39 58

Total emoluments Heegs 3,992 196 50 100 100 568 5,006

2013 —T-=F

Fees ik - - 50 100 100 - 250

Salaries and allowances FeREH 3,858 180 - - - 577 4615

Performance related incentive bonuses 5 5 8 SR BI L AT ( it &)

(Note ) - - - - - 88 88
Share-based payment expenses IR AERZ N2 B8R
(Note i) (B &) 667 83 83 125 125 83 1,166

Retirement benefit scheme contribution & /A& #5+ &l (30 3 36 - - - 39 78

Total emoluments Hegs 4528 299 133 225 225 787 6,197

Notes: B &

()  The performance related incentive bonuses for 2013 was )y ZE—=FFEsRREERpELLES
determined with reference to performance of the Group. EREEEEEF -HE_T—NF+=
No performance related incentive bonuses was granted to A=T—HIFE UEASEEFER
directors of the Group for the year ended 31st December, KRB EETEAL -
2014,

(i) These represent the estimated value of share options granted iy BHASBEBERAQABERESSETE
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. EHEREZGHEE - ZSEREZE
The value of these share options is measured according to BEREM FIMBEAEEEBUARND A
the Group’s accounting policies for the share-based payment EMNRZRG 2 ETBORFE - Bl%Z
transactions as set out in Note 3. The detalils of these benefits EEMMNZ 2 FE (BEMELEREZ
in kind, including the principal terms and number of options FEBRRREE ) RNF29F EE-R=F
granted, are disclosed under Note 29. No share option was — VO F AR AR A o

granted during the year 2014.

107



China Fortune Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z —F—UF+_-_A=+—HI-FE

13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

10

(0]

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2013: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2013:
three) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and allowances Fre MOER
Share-based payment expenses

Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000

None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31st December, 2014 and 2013,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

A BERINZER
RRREFIET IR

1,000,000/ 7T LA A

13. EEM S

AEBRUZSHFALH ERMA (=
T—=—F WMU)RARAESR HH2#H
R EXHEI2ARBEZEM AR T =
(ZE2—=F =) ALZz#ewmT:

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

1,234 1,663

- 278

50 75

1,284 1,916
ZEREZHMEN T THEHE:

2014 2013
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®E EE&H
& 3

RAFELREFA AUKEHALTHE
MEWEBEAHE -

HEzZ—HmNER=ZZT—=F+=ZA
=t+—BLFE - AEEHERAUES
FAT (BEES)INEAUHE  EAB
B A SKTE AR SE BES 2 Bl & sk 1k
REERR A -
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DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2013: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of loss per share for the year is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$24,482,000 (2013: loss of HK$59,831,000) and the
weighted average number of 826,871,387 shares in issue
during the year (2013: 821,745,634 shares in issue).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect of all
potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the years ended
31st December, 2014 and 2013.

14.

15.

R =

RAFERBEFEAR B8R REIK
BB B 2 MBS B AR INE B K £ 17
BE(ZT—=F F)-

BREE

FRNEREBDIBREBEFARNRAEBEAZ
JE {5 &5 1824,482,0008 0 ( — T — =4 :
/&5 859,831,000 L) R F R E B 7R H
826,871,387 2 MEFHH(ZF—=
F:821,745,634 B TR MH)FTE -

HREBE-_T—NFER_FT—=F+=A4

ST HUEFEZMAEBELBERIAR
BEME MU E2)SREFER-
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16.

110

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. BRER&RE

The Group
rEE
Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor  Construction
improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
ELS
HEHE RERRE RE EREIR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TER FAR FET
COST BA
At 1st January, 2013 R-ZE—=%—F—H 9,404 4,588 4,949 6,741 25,682
Exchange adjustments LS 286 113 105 217 721
Additions o 10 185 - - 195
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (615) - - (615)
At 31st December, 2013 RZE—-=%+-A=+—-H 9,700 4,271 5,064 6,958 25,983
Exchange adjustments ok (210) (79) (80) (163) (526)
Additions Ayl 381 187 67 - 635
Write-off g (565) (242) - - (807)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+-H 9,306 4,143 5,041 6,795 25,285
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHFERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2013 R-ZE—=%—F—H 4,382 3,025 3,181 - 10,588
Exchange adjustments IS 135 62 59 - 256
Provided for the year FERE 685 415 681 - 1,781
Eliminated on disposal/write-off L& /e ER - (561) - - (561)
At 31st December, 2013 RZE-ZF+_A=+—-H 5,202 2,941 3,921 - 12,084
Exchange adjustments ok (117) (50) (59) - (226)
Provided for the year FERE 638 327 692 - 1,657
Impairment loss REERE 593 398 - - 991
Eliminated on write-off WEAEERR (270) (242) - - (512)
At 31st December, 2014 RIZB-ME+-A=+—-H 6,046 3,374 4,554 - 13,974
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31st December, 2014 RZZ-mE+=A=+—H 3,260 769 487 6,795 11,311
At 31st December, 2013 W-Z-—=%+-fF=+—H 4,498 1,330 1,133 6,958 13,919

During the vyear, leasehold improvements and furniture,
fixtures and equipment relating to mobile phone business
of the Group with carrying amount of HK$991,000 was fully
impaired after considering the continuing increasing losses
in the business segment by the directors of the Group. The
impairment loss of HK$991,000 was recognised in other
gains and losses after comparing the carrying amount of
these items with their fair value less cost of disposal.

FR-FRAEBERHERXBHEER
EAREM KERREBEZEURE  HiR
[E % /991,000 T I AREEEEFLK
ERZEBDMZBEFEEINEIFESL -
ELBZEHRB 2REEBERFERD
ERAIL > 991,000 T2 REBEDER
filb W st N B 1R HERR o
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17. MINING RIGHT 17. RIEHE
The Group
AEE
HK$’'000
FET
COST R
At 1st January, 2013 RZZE—=%—H—H 456,320
Exchange adjustments E AR 14,720
At 31st December, 2013 RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H 471,040
Exchange adjustments bE 5 & (11,040)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—mOF+=—HA=+—H 460,000
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND ZtBEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2013 R-ZZE—=%—A—H 62,035
Exchange adjustments ME 5 38 & 3,883
Impairment for the year FARRIE 118,637
At 31st December, 2013 RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H 184,555
Exchange adjustments bE 3 (4,326)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—OF+—A=+—H 180,229
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31st December, 2014 A—E—NF+_A=+—H 279,771
At 31st December, 2013 WN-E—=%+-FA=+—H 286,485

111



China Fortune Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

B BRI

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z —F—UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

17.

112

MINING RIGHT (Continued)

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of
production method based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves. Sifa Mining obtained a mining operating
permit for 2 years starting from 25th September, 2012
granted by Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC
(REARKEMEE+EJRE) (“MLR”), under which Sifa
Mining was restricted to exploration activities only and
prohibited from exploitation activities. The mining operating
permit expired on 25th September, 2014. Sifa Mining is
not allowed to restart any mining activities until a renewed
mining operating permit is obtained.

During the year, the Group prepared documentation as
required and submitted the application to MLR for a
renewal of mining operating permit without the prohibition
of exploitation activities. At the date of this report, the
application is still under the final assessment by MLR. In
the opinion of the directors, it is highly probable that the
renewal application will be approved by MLR in the first half
year of 2015.

If the renewal application was unsuccessful or the
prohibition on exploitation activities was not released,
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of
the mining business shall be reassessed and the carrying
amount of mining right may be impaired.

The exploitation on the first phase was completed in 2010.
Sifa Mining commenced developing a new mining site
exploitation system in the next phase since then. However,
the development had been inevitably and adversely affected
by the downturn of the global mineral resources demand
since second half of 2012. Although it was expected that
the downturn was temporary and only being a normal cycle
adjustment in the industry, the management proceeded in a
prudent way to restructure the overall construction schedule
of this new mining system, by readjusting construction
speed and time schedule for matching the industry cycle
accordingly.

17. KB (2)

KRR EERENTEAtEEAmE
TTHREEES RN - RBEEDERERA
MEETRERENEEN AERENLE
Ho M BBECMEFEARKNMBEE L
BRF ([BLERB) RN ZHKEFFA
FB-T-—_FNAA-THAEFTAH
M - R - SR B IR R RIR B R A AT RIR
AE) TRAETTRERAE - REESF A EE R
—E-NUFEAAZTRAEM -EERBE
BRUERT A AT SR BB E NS ERUEM
RIEAE -

FRASEREMBEXHFALRBELER
IR UBERET AR EHRE
PAXEE-RNARERH BFNFEL
BREMESEFG -BEFEAR EEFAR
AABER - Z—AF L¥FEBLERM
o o

HEBEERF AL B REB WL - K
BEGNRSELBM 2 ATRESBAER
Bt RERZEREELGHE

E-RBORARIELCER S —ZF53
B IBBBENELEDART B &R
FBHFARZS - AW AR 2KEEER
FREZTE—ZEFTFFRER BE%
BEAREIINTAZE - BEEHATS
REBERUEE EAXRNZEREBRAZE .
ERECHDMEFEE R EF AN IE
BRERE SAMRKBERR 2 BERT
K& UEEITEBER-
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

The directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the mining business
to which the mining right is allocated by reference to
the professional valuation as at 31st December, 2014,
performed by Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory
Services (HK) Ltd.. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit was determined based on a value in use
calculation. The key assumptions adopted in the value in
use calculation relate to the renewal of mining operating
permit, estimated reserves, estimated productivity and the
estimated prices of mineral resources. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management with certain key parameters as below:

BRI (FAD)

Discount rate (pre-tax)

Growth rate 1 £ &
Gross profit ratio E R =

Based on the above review, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of the mining business approximates
to its carrying value as at 31st December, 2014. Directors
considered that no impairment loss has to be recognised
for the year.

At 31st December, 2014, 100,000 tons (2013: 100,000
tons) minerals included in the underlying reserves were
pledged to the other borrowings (Note 27).

17. KB (2)

EZCRBERETEREXERER LA
R-E-—ME+_R=+—RETHEE
fMEHEDEREERNREXHEREES
BAUMAKROSBEEFASH - REEL
B A Bl S ERIEE B EERE 5
HEREBEEREACEIEBRRIENESR
R E  BYERMGTFE B EE
EREHEE-BRAFESTAREEEE
WENMBEREERRE S RBREET

ETIEFESENT:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTAT
20.3% 20.5%
3.0% 3.0%
49.3% 47.6%

AR LMERN RBEXBREELEM
ZAIWEO e EEER —E—ME+ A
=t-HZEAENRE EFERRBAR
FARHERREEE -

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H HEHXE
75 100,000MF ( == — =4 : 100,00005 )
BECEAEMESR 2T (KE27) -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in unlisted
associates

Share of post-acquisition reserves

Exchange adjustments

Less: allowance for impairment

Particulars of the associates as at 31st December, 2014

and 2013 are set out in Note 39.

The summarised financial information in respect of the

18. MERNTZRE

The Group
TEE

2014 2013
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FAT

RIEETHERGE 2
"B KA 5,881 2,131
FEAG UK BB 12 R 1R (1,620) (251)
PE S 7 -
4,268 1,880
AR E B (857) (857)
3,411 1,023

associates held by the Group at the end of reporting period BAERBESY N :

is set out below:

Artchief Industries Limited (“Artchief”)

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Revenue

Loss for the year

Group’s share of result of the associate
for the year

114

R-E—NFER T —Z=ZF+_A=+—
Sl I NI ER 9 N TR

REBRPEER  XEBEMFBERRZ

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFEEXERAT ([EHE]) FHExT FABT
BEBE 1,575 2,665
BEBRE (666) (618)
BEFE 909 2,047
AEBDEZEE DA
BEFEE 455 1,023
W 2= 728 8,293
FEEIE (1,138) (1,208)
AEBEDGZEE DA
FEXE (569) (604)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

19.

ERREEBEREERARF
(“Beijing Feiying”) (TE=RE])

BEMRE

B{EARH

Total assets
Total liabilities

BEFE

Net assets

Group’s share of net assets of AEE DG L

the associate (Note)

Revenue g

Loss for the period after acquisition W BB 1% BRI 2 518

Group’s share of result of the associate AN @ 7 1 % B &
for the year FEER

Note:  Since the other shareholders of Beijing Feiying have not
fully paid up their respective shares, the amount of the
Group’s share of net assets of the associate represents
the total cash contribution by the Group at acquisition date
plus the subsequent change of net assets in shareholding

pro-rata basis.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due to subsidiaries

R (E B

Less: Allowance of impairment

ERREEHFR AR A A

BEFE (M

FE MR AR
& 45 Bt /8 2 m) 2 5RIR
FEAT BT B A R 2 5RIR

18. BERB 2 RE (&)

2014
HK$’000
TERT

2013
HK$’'000
TAET

3,181 -
(69) -

3,112 -

Gl

2,956 -

(1,600) -

A

(800) -

et . mRdERRE 2 HMERRE R 2B
FERE 2B AEBEDEZBEER
AEEFEZEE HAKERWER
2B HERE N EERRFREL

PIsHE 2 AEEER (L

19. i A Al =

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAET
53,578 54,864
620,870 620,870
(55,236) (56,456)
619,212 619,278
(620,870) (620,870)
(1,658) (1,592)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Accumulated
allowance of impairment for amounts due from subsidiaries
of HK$620,870,000 (2013: HK$620,870,000) had been
recognised up to 31st December, 2014 because the related
recoverable amounts were estimated to be less than their
respective carrying amounts.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38.

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20.
Available-for-sale investments comprise:
Equity securities: IRANFE 5 -
Unlisted in Hong Kong (note a) BB LTRA (HTa)
Unlisted outside Hong Kong (note b) BARINZIELTRAE
(MF5ED)

note a: This represents a 1.21% (2013: 1.21%) interest in unlisted
equity securities issued by a private entity incorporated in
Hong Kong, which is engaged in provision of computer
technology services in Hong Kong.

note b: This represents a 4.84% (2013: 5.78%) interest in Jolla
Limited, a limited company incorporated in Finland, which
is engaged in mobile phone software development, sales
and distribution, equipment design and manufacturing,
marketing and sales, investment holding and consulting.
After a series of private placing activities carried out by
Jolla Limited in 2014, the Group’s interest in Jolla Limited
has been diluted to 4.84%.

note c: The investments in unlisted equity securities are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair values estimates is
so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that fair value of the investments cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose
of the investments in the near future.
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19.

MEQRER (&)

FEUR ~ (FEAT) B A B 2 5B A
T ERAREREE - AR EETKE
CHEEFIRESAZERE  HEEC
T—ME+-A=+—HEHERAERHE
NaElZFIB 2 BETRERE#620,870,000/%
7T (=& — =4 :620,870,000& 7T ) °

TEMBARFIRHNMESS -

AHHERE
AHEERERRE:
The Group
A

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
69 69
10,234 10,234
10,303 10,303

fisfa: WH—RREBBEMERIZ AT
PRI IE EMBRAERZ1.21% (=F
—=F1.21% ) En - ZERETER
HE R AR TS -

MfsEb @ 1t Jhdolla Limited (— X 7 55 8 £ it
R ZBRAF)24.84%m (ZF
—=%:578%) ' Jolla Limited#t =5
BOHERDHEBEHE A R R
BENE TS HEREE RELER
MR - 483B —F — M F Jolla Limited
BITZERLARER  NEBERJola
Limited 2 # & 4 858 £4.84% ©

Biftc : FFLMRAEHF R ALK AR HE
REVREFE RERESBEAFERL
AEEBKN ARREERR/EEME
WHEZEFREZATE AEEEER
REPREEZSKRE -
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21. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 21. BFTE%E
The Group
AEE
HK$’000
FHET
COST RS
At 1st January, 2013 RZZE—=%—H—H 1,391
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 & 6
At 31st December, 2013 RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H 1,397
Exchange adjustments bE 5 & (5)
At 31st December, 2014 R-_ZE-—MOF+-A=+—H 1,392
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1st January, 2013 and 31st December, 2013 RZE—=%—A—HE
—E—=F+=ZHA=+—H 176
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEBRZREEE 110
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—mF+=—A=+—H 286
CARRYING AMOUNT SREE
At 31st December, 2014 RZZE-—MF+-_A=+—H 1,106
At 31st December, 2013 RZE—=F+=—A=+—H 1,221
Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified @ e IRk AT 2 BB REEEY
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing BEomBlemefEsaRER  lkE45E
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been AT EREERANSBEE M -_Fmi5
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which B E KA -

represents the second-hand market price less cost of
disposal.
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22. INVENTORIES 22. & &
Inventories comprise finished goods in: FEBEREKSM:
The Group
REHE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Mobile phones business BB EREETE 5,220 5,926
Mining business REE 1,282 1,313
6,502 7,239
Included in the cost of inventories recognised as expense BEE-_FT--NE+-_BA=+—HIFEY
for the year ended 31st December, 2014 were write down CHERAERAI ZHFEXRADIREER A
of inventories with an aggregate balance of HK$298,000 298,000/ 7x ( =& — =4 : 1,296,000/8
(2013: HK$1,296,000), and recovery of write down of TC) ZAFEMUR - LA R A AT B IR SR {E SN
inventories of HK$628,000 (2013: HK$2,269,000) which i 8 1 > 17 & MU 628,000 T (—T—=

was caused by the increase in the net realisable value. 12,269,000/ 7T) °
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. EWE 5 IR K H 1t B W AR X

The Group
KE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

TExT FABT

Trade receivables fEUE F R 19,981 21,318

Less: accumulated allowance W BETE (18,458) (18,563)

1,523 2,755

Value-added-tax receivables JE U I (B R 427 231

Rebates receivable JFE UL [B] FFR IR - 30

Prepayments to suppliers TEAT L FE P 3R IE 2,850 1,720

Other receivables and deposits H bW R R M iR & 13,299 19,548

Less: accumulated allowance W BETEE (3,180) (3,518)
Trade and other receivables JEUWE Z BRI &%

H & U BR K 14,919 20,766

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its
trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers
a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented

AEE-REREFEPENEZHAIEA
BlRETETESEP=TENTHZE
EM-RERPEEAZREESER (B
NREE) REZAMET ZRE DT A0

based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period: T:
The Group
rEH

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
0 to 30 days TE==+H 240 883
31 to 90 days =t+—Z=n+H 1,205 343
91 to 365 days N+—Z2=BTHH 43 213
Over 365 days BBE=EATHHA 35 1,316
1,523 2,755
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23.

120

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its
credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history
and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit
assessment.

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end of
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management are of the opinion
that the fundamental credit quality of the customers has not
deteriorated:

Less than 90 days past due BEI LR AT H
Over 90 days but less than 365 days wEAER B LT H

past due
Over 365 days past due

BAR=BXRTHH
BHEE=BTHA

23. EWE 5 IR K H 1t B W AR X
(4% )

EMEFAHEFA AREENHEER
FPZEEEE RERAEEERE TR
ARTEPZRB -REASEABEE
AHE - KB D BEARBEITR RBE 2 B E
FERFA BB RCEBERERRL -

AEBYERESERFETAERR -
UTARERMEEND BHEREREE
RRBEPZEAEREERY REBLMER
AEBYEFHREBEREZESER
ZEREERRER DT

The Group
rEH

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
1,315 1,226
43 213
B 36
1,393 1,475
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year FE R

Exchange adjustments ME W B

Impairment losses recognised FRBERZBEERE
during the year

Amounts written off as uncollectible EAEFRE 2 MEEE

Balance at end of year FIREE R

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in Note
3.

Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision
for individually impaired trade and other receivables of
HK$21,638,000 (2013:HK$22,081,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$21,638,000 (2013:
HK$23,361,000).

The individually impaired trade and other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in both interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

23. EWWE SRR H it FE IRBR X

(#&)

BB 55 B 5L 2 W B R IR
H2H

The Group

AEE
2014 20183
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
22,081 20,586
(185) 227
- 1,268
(258) -
21,638 22,081

A& BAR IR M FESPT Al 2 & AT B W RR {E
A EHE 2 BEREE -

Fillgh R E SRR R E A W R R 2 R
FREBLEXCEANBEZERE S K
SR K HoAth [ Y BR 51 2 5 521,688,000 7T
— T —=4:22,081,00087T) ' B &R
BF @ {5 521,638,000 T (T — =
23,361,000/ 7T) °

E &R B 2 FE U E 5 AR 5K K E At FE U R
BoF R AB SR B S IE R B R RA
TR ERH A FAHE AU B 8 YR R
Z—#De
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24.

25.

26.

122

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included
in cash and cash equivalents at 31st December, 2014 are
the amounts in RMB of approximately RMB13,657,000
(2013: RMB20,667,000) in form of cash on hand and
demand deposits and approximately RMB42,000,000
(2013: RMB53,000,000) in form of short term highly liquid
investments. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting
period:

Trade payables: FERE SR

0 to 30 days TE=+H

31 to 90 days =+—Z=ATH

Over 90 days BB+ A
Rebates payable FEAS B 405878
Prepayments from customers EPEMNIE

Other payables and accruals

24

25.

26.

Hip R ERER

PR, FEAS ISR A B FE 4R A M R R
Z R IE

BHRAEER THERAREREER-

RERREEEY
RITRSIRFBHRITE R EHIF & -

AEBEZHRESRASCEBYWEEULEE
EREEZNREEARBRBITFE:
AZE—NFE+_A=+—H BR& &R
CEBYEBREAARBFTEZFEES
MBS ERHAREE13,657,00000 (=ZF
—=4F: AR #¥20,667,0007T) M EH S
BB AR ®42,000,0005T (= F
— =% : AR#53,000,0007T) > AR
SEBHARAHEMEY-

BN E 5 R R HE b YRR X

REGMEER 2 BN ESERFIZERA
M2 ZREDTT

The Group
AR

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
504 544
865 12
276 193
1,645 749
1,494 5,960
70 1,427
21,871 22,034
25,080 30,170
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28.

Other borrowings, secured

E IR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

HifEE  AEA

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s other
borrowings were pledged by 100,000 (2013: 100,000) tons
of minerals reserve, carrying at a fixed annual interest rate
of 8.47% (2013: 8.47%) per annum and repayable within

one year (2013: within one year).

At 31st December, 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have

any banking facilities.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
At beginning of year

Share options exercised
Warrants exercised

At end of year

EERA
FREECI10ETZ EBR
ERTRAZKRIRA
GREEC10ETZ EBMR
READ

ETHERERE

EfTHERRER

NS

27. 5 &

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
15,498 15,870

RERBEER AEBEMEENU
100,000MF ( —Z — =4 : 100,000MF ) #& =
FEEET BREETFMNEL47% (ZF
—Z=F:84T%)FFE AR —FRN(ZF
—=F:—FRN)EE-

R_E—NER-_E—=F+—_A=+—
B AEBILETEFEITRE -

28. B&

Number of

ordinary shares Share capital

LEREEA B
2014 2013 2014 2013
'000 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T TER TRT
1,000,000 1,000,000 100,000 100,000
823,163 821,663 82,316 82,166
4,700 1,500 470 150
1,200 - 120 -
829,063 823,163 82,906 82,316
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29.

124

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 14th
January, 2004 which was effective on 26th January, 2004
and expired on 26th January, 2014. On 28th May, 2014,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which is principally the same as the previous
one. The primary purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to directors, eligible employees and other
qualified persons who in the opinion of the board of
directors has made or will make contributions which are or
may be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (ii) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
(i) the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to
be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

On 12th July, 2013, the Company granted in total
19,100,000 share options to certain eligible participants of
the share option scheme.

2. LR ABERBLARZRS

ARRAR_TENF-A+HBERK—
AR R R ZE BN —_TTWF— A
THARBERIRZT-—HFE-AZ+X
BEm R —_F—HFRA-+N\A AR
IR EACERTE ([F1E])) AR ERE
SEABER -FEZIEENRAES
ERRBEAEEEBRBN A B ELHBEL
BRAAEBREBMZES AERER
REMAEERALLR TERB-

RIEET S EETHREZRH T NARE
ERRNEEERLBE RSB ERAEIIE
B EERBREATEEBRER 2 AEE
KB AR REIMBERNRZES &
B-ftEm - RE - BF DHEE X%H
BANBY BEEBSEMER  ZHAA
s AR R T A IR A B S R E AR R AR
D2 BRRHE  HRBERTELRORG®E
B (RO RRHBSPEBESZKmE
MR EEEREREAHAER
SBEBRZzFEFHRmEZRSE M
BREZEREITRBEZROBEERZUR
RATHDETREZI0% AR -

REGEAR QB R R BRI (VRIBEET S AT
REREEREAERD A TEHRE
RN GMEREEEZEITRMD 210% - (i)
EREAR+ @A BEARE R L X
REERE 2 HBEE BT REEITRGD

B THEBEARAREMEREEITRGD
Z1% °

BIRRARZX IR Z BEART IR
EM YAREMAREREZBREST
XMBTzER-

RZE—=%F+A+=-B - ARQamiE
BHEFE 2 ETAER2EERLA K
19,100,00017) i& % #E -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

At 31st December, 2014, there were 12,900,000
outstanding shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme
(2013: 17,600,000 outstanding share options). The
outstanding shares represent less than 2% of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The following table discloses movement of the Company’s
share options held by employees and consultants (including
directors) during the years ended 31st December, 2014 and
2018:

20. LR BERNR2ZRS (&)

R-Z—ME+-_A=+—HB HBiFE:t
SEELBEDARMKRITECERES R
12,900,000l RETRH (Z T —=4F:
17,600,00017 (4 K771 2 BERRAE ) ~ MR1T
FZERELRARTNZEEETRET
B2% °

TREBRHE-_ZT—WFER_FT—=
+ZA=+—BLFEREREM (BE

£ FISAATRRES

Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
Exercisable price at during during at during at
Name Date of grant period per share 1.1.2013 the year the year 31.12.2013 the year 31.12.2014
RZB-ZF R-B-=% RZB-mE
-A-H TZBE=t-H t=A=t-H
2R BHBH T&H BRTERE HATE ERRE ERTE AT FRTR 1 RAT
HK$ (Note ii) (Note iii) (Note i)
BT (fi3Ei) (Fstiin) (Pftsii)
Category I:
-8
- Directors 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018 0.255 - 14,000,000 - 14,000,000 (1,500,000) 12,500,000
-% —F-=% ZE-ZELAtCRE
tA+=H “Z-N\ftA+-H
Category I:
o8
- Employees 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018 0.255 - 4,800,000 (1,500,000) 3,300,000 (3,200,000) 100,000
-E8 —3-=F “2-ZFtAtZRZE
tA+=H “Z-N\ftA+-H
Category Il
F=H:
- Consultants (Note i) 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018 0.255 - 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
B GIGED) —F-=% ZZ-ZE+AT-RE
tA+=H “Z-)\ftA+-H
Total for all categories - 19,100,000 (1,500,000) 17,600,000 (4,700,000) 12,900,000
FE Bl st
Exercisable at the end of
the year - 17,600,000 12,900,000
RELTITE
Weighted average
exercise price - HK$0.255 HK$0.255 HK$0.255 HK$0.255 HK$0.255
NEFHTEE - 0.255%8 71 0.255% 71 0.255%8 7 0.25575 70 0.255% 7T
Weighted average
remaining contractual life
at the end of the year - 4.58 years 3.53 years
RELZMETHHRT
ahE - 4,53 3.53%F
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30. WARRANTS 30.
Balance at 1st January R—A—BZ&#%
Initial recognition aHE R
Exercise oakd
Balance at 31st December R+ZRAR=+—B2&#%

126

B BRI

e year ended 31st December, 2014 BZE—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 29.

(Continued)
Notes:

()  The Group granted share options to the consultants in return
for their provision of management consultancy services to the
Group.

(i) There is no vesting period implemented on the share options
granted. The weighted average fair value of each option
granted was HK$0.0818.

(i)  The weighted average share price at the date of options
exercised during the year was HK$0.55 (2013: HK$0.52).

On 15th July, 2014, an aggregate of 160,000,000 warrants
was fully placed and issued at the issue price of HK$0.01
per warrant. The subscription price of the warrants is
HK$0.5 per shares and the subscription period is two
years starting from the date of issue. The proceeds of
approximately HK$1,600,000 raised by the placing will be
used by the Group as general working capital. Assuming
the full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the
warrants, approximately HK$80,000,000 will be raised and
will be used by the Group as general working capital and as
funds for future development of the Group.

DURHBEREIRZRS (&)

W b :

() AEEXTEBZBRE HIERRER
REBRHEERZRIRS ZDH -

(i) REZERBEIERERBEH ARHZ
00 B2 192 F{ER0.0818/8

JT ©

iy FRITEEBRESBZ2MBEFTHARER
0558 L (ZTE—=4:05287T)

AR REE
The Group and the Company
EEBERART
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
1,600 -
(12) -
1,588 -

R_Z—NFE+LA+AHB BRETES
MDRBREFBOOVB TEHMLE RBITAR
160,000,000f7 RAZEFE - RIREFZE 2R
BEAERRKRM.5HE T  REMMBET
HERFABMF -BEEE2MERE
#91,600,000/8 T AEAR S B — & &
B o RERRIRBEE FTMT 3R B A 1 BT
f# -+ 15 % £ 4980,000,000 7t H G A EAR
EE-REEERAEERKREEMNE
G o
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30. WARRANTS (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 3, Binomial Option Pricing Model is
used to measure the fair value of the warrants that are not
traded in an active market. However, in accordance with
HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, the fair value of the warrants at
inception is normally the transaction price. If the transaction
price differs from the amount determined at inception using
a level 3 valuation technique, that difference is deferred and
not recognised in profit or loss and referred to as deferred
day-1 profit or loss. The table below reflects the activities
in deferred day-1 profit or loss for the unlisted warrants,
including the aggregate difference yet to be recognised
in profit or loss at the beginning and end of the reporting
period and a reconciliation of changes during the reporting
period. Amounts deferred are recognised in profit or loss

30.

E IR M R

—NE+ZA=+—HILFE

RRER (E)

AR FESPT IR FE - AR RERA A HiAg
EERUEERAABRLZ MG 2 BIHE
BZRFE-RM ZBREEMBRELE
AIZE135E R BB G5 ERIE30% - BAHE
ERBERRZATFERTRRHER-
WERXZERARNABERERAE=
REERMAEE2HE ZEZ8DE
BERERTEEERaRER LHAERT
BREANEER TRRRIE TR RE
ERELCERGNRNEBRNEREEER &
i AR B AR MR A RS ) R 3R
ANAKEZEALRBEHANE B YRR
EHEEMIEEXMB2ERBAER
B EEcHEEeERaRER -EX5F

when pricing of equivalent products or the underlying B EES B[P EMEG -
parameters become observable. When the transaction is
closed out, the amounts deferred are released.
2014
HK$’000
FET
Deferred day-1 losses arising from HETAREIMEEZ
issue of warrants EXZLEAEE
Balance at 1st January J‘E’\\* A—Bz#&&% -
Issue of warrants BITRRERE 33,476
Fair value change in warrants not recognised in I B 7 8 A AR T ER
profit or loss RREEFERNFLEES (10,505)
Balance at 31st December RT-_A=+—Hz&&% 22,971

Fair value changes subsequent to initial recognition
are not recognised in profit or loss to the extent of the
unrecognised loss on initial recognition.

{5 )R TS 5 R TR - R R
R ATEEDTRNERER -
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30. WARRANTS (Continued)

The fair value of the warrants at 31st December, 2014 is
level 3 recurring fair value measurement which calculated by
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the
model are as follows:

Option pricing model used Frie A AR E BRI
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%)
Expected life (Years) TEEAERR ()
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [ B F1) 2 (%)

Spot Price R(E

Expect dividend yield FE HIRR B X

The Binomial Option Pricing Model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price. Therefore the changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates.

128

30.

mRER (E)

RREER—_ZT—OF+=_A=+—HBZ
AFE - BEA-_EANEEERILANE
CECREFEBERNTFENE - AR
BT

2014

Binomial option pricing model
—EAMEEEER

88.63

1.54

0.35

0.42

0

“HEAHREERATERABRSTELZ
R AR BIERARERE Bt 8K
BERRXREAEAEL sHRATEMTE
REAZE -
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1st January, 2013

Exchange adjustments

Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 10)

At 31st December, 2013 and 1st January, 2014

Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2014

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$36,024,000 (2013:
HK$45,333,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is

M.EEHRERE

TERRAFER EFECER
HREEREES:
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Revaluation of

mining right

arising from

acquisition
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HK$’000
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R-_ZE—=F—HA—H 95,843

ME 3, o & 2,619

FFAFEER (MFE10) (29,659)
RZFB—=F+ZA=+—HK

—F-—mM¥—HA—H 68,803

ME 3, G B (1,611)

RZE—MF+=—A=+—H 67,192

BEFBECEMERE BT N\F—
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K2 BB BHMRIBIT - B AR K E A 8
NESFREWE AT R SN2 EEE
B 2 56 #936,024,0008 T (— T — =4
45,333,000/ 7T ) < BB e fA] - B KA 88
AR RARREE B B =58 MW ERERE
W RANZ SR EE T IREER R
o

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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33.
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B BHRRME

e year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ—-Z
OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments
of approximately HK$4,960,000 (2013: HK$3,849,000)
under operating leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:

—FR
E_FEFERF

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BREEMF)

EFENAE

Over five years

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties, retail shops and
common areas in the mining site. Leases are negotiated
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to six years
(2013: one to six years).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st December, 2014 and 2013, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

—HE+ZA=t—HILFE

33.

ﬁ«( P2 *ﬂ f{]

L EBEBEMBA

FR AEERBELEEROINZ RE
T4 454,960,000 T (Z T — =4
3,849,000/ 7T) °

REFRPEER AEERBE AT HEAE
HMBERTHREI M HEMRAMN
ZARZERSEENT :

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,771 3,171
225 4,139

- 1,044

1,996 8,354
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31st December,
2014 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:—

Contracted, but not provided for

- leasehold improvements —HEEE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

34.
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The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
1,720 1,747
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Amounts due to related parties

Mr. Lau

Epes

132

(b)

An associate — KRB N T

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel and
senior management

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the Group’s key management during the year was as
follows:

6. HEAT 2HE

(a) BfEEALZHE

(b)

Short-term benefits SRR R
Share-based payment expenses L BERS N2 ER
Post-employment benefits RIKERF

During the year, there was one senior management
(2013: two) whose emolument was within the band
from nil to HK$1,000,000.

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

The Group
AEME

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
2,667 1,142
500 500
3,167 1,642

RHRREEM T B RARERE
EO

FTEEEANSRBREEEKEZH
B

FREERAEHFEMFTEEEAES
ZBE&mT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
5,337 6,090
= 1,436

75 138
5,412 7,664

FRA —EZERAEEEKE (=
—ZF MAIZHERENHE
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37. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 37. X NEHE
Share
Share  Contributed  Translation option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE BaRH BERE BRERE AR B8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR TR Tix THL
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii) (Note iv)
(M3ED) (B i) (B i) (P skiv)
At 1st January, 2013 W-Z-=£-A-P 392,962 40,948 37,435 - (556,300) (84,955)
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - (1,529) (1,529)

Exchange differences arisingon = EAZMEL ERZE
translation - - (98) - - (98)

Recognition of equity-settied ~ BRRBELE R
share-based payment BEBTNZER
expenses - - - 1,562 - 1,562

Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T 5 ik i 47 AR 17
share options 233 - - - - 233

Transfer of reserve upon exercise 1A EEMREIT & ARE

of share options 116 - - (116) - -
At 31st December, 2013 WZZE-=%F

+-A=t-H 393,311 40,948 37,337 1,446 (557,829) (84,787)

Loss for the year FEF#E - - - - (3,770) (3,770)

Exchange differences arising on ~ EAZEMELEREE
translation - - 270 - - 270

=>

Issue of shares upon exercise of  FMT{E B IR IER 2171
share options 1,101 - - 872 - 729

Issue of shares upon exercise of RT3 EW BB EZR
unlisted warrants 7RG 492 - - - - 492

At 31st December, 2014 R-E-WE
+ZA=t-8 394,904 40,948 37,607 1,074 (561,599) (87,066)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z —F—UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

37. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuead)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il)

v)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transaction in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

37. KR Af#EE (&)

GEX

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

s ERERBRASEBLEEZR
I8 o

EHBRREENBARBARRKRES
AZEealRRESBARANEEEARK
A st W B T 21T Bt 2 EEDR R BA LR
A& B EARR 3£771,000,0008 AR BB AL
DR RIAME 2 Z5

BERBREAARRMBHRERENRER
BIERmEE 2 K EE-

BRERBERECEHERRITERZER
Bz NHE FHEREA M BHREM 3
AR BRERN R ZR G2 &t BEE—

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are incorporated with limited liability, at 31st December,
2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Name of
subsidiary

WEAREHE
Express Fortune Holdings

Limited

Express Fortune

134

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

ML B

British Virgin Islands
HERARES

Hong Kong

&R

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

B&#1T
REZRE/
HAREX

Ordinary US$100
LRR100%E T

Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred
HK$5,000,000 (Note)
LRRI0ET
BREREL
175,000,000/ 7T
(HE)

B.XTEMEBRAEHR

R_E—NER-_TE—=F+_HA=+—
Bz ARAREZEMEAR (B EFMKL
ZERBRAR)FBUOT:

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company Principal activity

ENR
ERTRAEE/
&R A TEXK
2014 2013
100% 100% Investment holding
REER
100% 100% Maintaining the

corporate office

EBRAPRE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of
subsidiary

WEAREH

Fortune Shanghai

RELE

Sifa Mining

BEBRE

Telefortune (China)
Investments Limited

REMB (PE)ERE
BRAR

Eagles Fund Technology
Investment Limited

ZEESHBREARAA

Zhuhai Reminda

KEERE

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/
establishment registered capital
B#1T

RBERE/

R AL, R B HMEX

Wholly foreign owned US$28,100,000
enterprise established
in the PRC

ERBIR 2
NEBELE

28,100,000% 7T

Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000

ventures established in

the PRC
ERERLZ AR 1,000,000
PHRELE
Hong Kong Ordinary
HK$40,000,000
BB LBk
40,000,000% 7T
Hong Kong Ordinary
HK$10,000
£ LE%10,00078 T
Sino-foreign equity RMB10,000,000
joint ventures
established
in the PRC
ERBIKZ AR #10,000,0007T
PONEERE

3. TEMBATER (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

FRAME
ERATRAEE/
AMER 2 Al
2014 2013
100% 100%
50.8% 50.8%
100% 100%
100% 100%
51% 51%

Principal activity

TEER

Trading in mobile
phones

BEVHEHE
Exploration and
extraction of

mining resources

HRIFARBEEER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REZR

Trading in mobile
phones

EEVBE:
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39.

136

(Continued)

Note:  The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective company or to participate in any

distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in the
PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would,

result in particulars of excessive length.

in the opinion of the directors,

PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group’s associates at 31st December, 2014
and 2013 are as follows:

Place of
Form of business incorporation/

Name of associate structure operation
BENRER EBERES AR EE
Artchief Incorporated Hong Kong

2% BRIz B

Beijing Feiying Incorporated PRC

It RRE BRIz i

38.

39.

TENBLARESR (F)

BieE: BIERMDER LG RERAR AR
ZBREHWEE A REARRASE
EREFERRAG NG LRERNE

BES2E DK ER

AN ) B ¥ #5 H Express Fortune Holdings
Limited# 2z + M £ XFTR 2 PTG H Ath i 25
HMHARARIMERS -

B Express Fortune Holdings Limited=E £
ERBEEERBIN L T 2B NE
B SL, S B AT & o

E M B A R R F R R [ 19 AT
B & %5 o

LRASIEDEF AR EREBEL
FEEFEZAANEEMNBAR - HF
RE BIRGHBAT #EESEM
BRBRTE -

BMENTER

R-FE-—MER-_FT—=F+-_A=+—
EZ$$@%%“ EACTUNNE

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

held by the Group Principal activity

rRXEEE
ERTRAEE
Bak TEXR

2014 2013

50% 50% Trading in electronic
products

EESfEMm

50% - Trading in second-
hand mobile
phones

BEE_FBYER
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Sifa Mining, a 50.8% owned subsidiary and Zhuhai
Reminda, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, have
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
financial information in relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining
and Zhuhai Reminda, before intra-group eliminations, are

presented below:

Sifa Mining

For the year ended 31st December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31st December

Cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows generated from financing
activities

Net cash (outflows)/inflows

As at 31st December

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

E BT R AR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H#E T —NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

40. FEEEHIEE RS

Summarised

KRB HEAL0.8%HE % 2 I B A~ B8 E R
ELBAI%ER ZMBRAKEER
ERAE ARSI S ([ 1w
@) BENRERENRIKEE R EIFEG
MRaENETERERRREYHEN2T%

ERBEE50T

BE+t=-A=+—HLEE

EEECE N
DEEIFEHIEERZ B
A JE42 M A R S N 2 IR
BE+T-RA=1T—-HLFE

i
REZHMAEESR
MERBABRERM

RETHMARE)

]

BHe Ofb) /RAFE
R+=—RA=+—8
RBEE

FRBEE

mEARE

FRBEE

BEFE

EEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
(8,264) (96,539)
(12,530) (89,234)
(4,066) (47,497)
(7,689) (4,464)
= (170)
7,540 5,726
(149) 1,092
6,622 6,187
290,560 298,044
(58,000) (50,908)
(67,192) (68,804)
171,990 184,519
84,618 90,783

REHFEE B R
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 40. FEEHIMRES (&)
Zhuhai Reminda KEEIEZE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FABT

For the year ended 31st December BE+-A=+—HLEFE

Revenue Y 42,332 100,105
Loss for the year FEERE (8,750) (1,743)
Total comprehensive income FHEBBA (8,929) (1,436)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIEEFIERERE 2 BB (1,838) (854)
Dividends paid to NCI [A) JE 4% 1 1 M 2 S 5 2 BB - -

For the year ended 31st December BHE+-A=+—HLEE

Cash flows generated from operating KEFEFAEHRESRE

activities 478 145
Cash flows used in investing activities HEGEFARERE (552) (29)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be (Rt RAFE (74) 116
As at 31st December R+t=-—BA=+—8H
Current assets mENEE 11,369 13,143
Non-current assets ERBEE 300 1,394
Current liabilities mENBE (6,673) (5,612)
Net assets BEFE 4,996 8,925
Accumulated non-controlling interests EETIEE I S 2,448 4,373

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. #t /& B B | ik

The financial statements were approved and authorised for B RRER_E—RAF=-A=-_++tAHE
issue by the Board of Directors on 27th March, 2015. EESHEREETE-
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RESULTS

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interest in an associate

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Reversal of impairment loss of trade and
other receivables

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

REREERAERAT
—E-ER
Financial Summary
B E
4
Year ended 31st December,
BE+-A=+-HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FEL FEL FEL FET TER
] 2544120 1,765,862 623,049 198,344 57,587
HEMKK (2,479,356) (1,704,539)  (609,374)  (182,770) (49,027
EF 64,764 61,323 13,675 15,574 8,560
B Az kEE 16,403 5,322 5,471 4,984 4,194
HERDBERA (22,450)  (14,885)  (10,847)  (10,839)  (10,408)
THER (27,308) (31,823) (26,982) (25,728)  (30,040)
RENE SRR R EMERER
R BEBR (2,852) - (3,321) (1,268) =
RRBEEIZRESR
- - (60,847)  (118,637) =
RHERRCAERE
- (2,910) - - =
R—FBENAERERL
REER - - (857) - =
HE—RMBLR R 2z - 2 - - =
EURESETREMERERERZ
MEEBRRD 397 641 - - =
aR (oY AN 444 5 (106) (604) (1,369)
BERA (11,658) (6,535) (1,340) (1,323) (1,323)
BRITERATER,/ (B1]) 17,740 11,140 (85,154)  (137,841)  (30,386)
FTe® () /B % (2,104) 15 15,215 29,659 =
EREMN/ (H]) 15,636 11,155 (69,939)  (108,182)  (30,386)
JE{G -
ARAEE A 14,875 15,922 (43,872) (59,831) (24,482
JEE 761 4,767)  (26,067)  (48,351) (5,904)
15,636 11,155 (69,939)  (108,182)  (30,386)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERESE

At 31st December,
R+t=A=+-H

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TET TR

Total assets BEBE 867,381 742,748 585,271 441,708 402,354
Total liabilities BELE (421,075)  (263,265)  (171,702)  (123,017)  (119,416)

446,306 479,483 413,569 318,691 282,938

Equity attributable to owners of ARAREBAELER
the Company 283,611 314780 273,806 223,535 195,872
Non-controlling interests oyl 162,695 164,703 139,763 95,156 87,066

446,306 479,483 413,569 318,691 282,938
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